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Letter to shareholders




Dear shareholders

Against a backdrop of plummeting commodity prices

and deteriorating economic conditions, we at Gran Tierra
Energy have been quietly and diligently doing what we do
best: finding new oil reserves through exploration drilling;
increasing oil production through cost effective and
efficient development of those new reserves; and making
acquisitions of underdeveloped assets to drive our strategy
of growth and value creation through the drill bit.

Enhanced Capital Markets Profile

Gran Tierra Energy began the year listed on the OTCBB, but
by February we were listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange
(TSX - GTE), and in April we listed on the American Stock
Exchange (now NYSE Amex— GTE), substantially raising
our profile in the capital markets. These moves reflected
Gran Tierra Energy’s success in executing its strategy,

its growing potential, and granted us access to a much
broader, resource savvy investor audience. The subsequent
acquisition of TSX-Venture and AIM-listed Solana
Resources allowed us to further broaden our international
shareholder base, increase our liquidity and potentially
improve our access to the capital markets.

Transformational Acquisition

Late in the year we completed the acquisition of Solana
Resources giving the combined entity the necessary scale

in terms of land, reserves, production, cash flow, cash and
credit to compete more effectively on the international
stage. The all-stock transaction further enhanced the

value of the new Gran Tierra Energy, providing us with a
particularly strong balance sheet. The transaction allowed us
to consolidate 100% of the working interest in the Costayaco
Field, one of the largest oil discoveries in Colombia in recent
years, effectively doubling our production to more than
5,000 BOPD, adding more than 11 million BOE in proved and
probable reserves, and substantially increasing our portfolio
of exploration opportunities in Colombia, in addition to our
existing opportunities in Peru and Colombia.

A Year of Growth in Reserves

The year-end 2008 independent reserves report from GL}
Petroleum Consultants Ltd. estimates Gran Tierra Energy’s
SEC compliant proved reserves are 19.2 million barrels, an
increase of 200% over the previous year. Fourth quarter
2008 production was 4,074 BOPD, an increase of 72% over
the fourth quarter of the previous year.

Growth in Land and Opportunity

Gran Tierra Energy had a net working interest in 6.2 million
net acres of land for future exploration within Colombia
(1.5 million), Peru (3.4 million) and Argentina (1.3 million),
at the end of 2008, an increase of 6% over the end of the
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previous year. Gran Tierra Energy operated 24 of the 26
blocks of land in these countries, allowing the Company to
control its work programs, budgets, prospect generation,
drilling operations, and developments when successful.

Aggressive Exploration

We are focused on oil exploration in operating
environments with economic terms that make sense,
and where the reward justifies the risk. In 2008 Gran
Tierra Energy drilled four exploration wells and made
three new discoveries.

Colombia

In the Middle Magdalena basin we made a gas-
condensate discovery at the Popa-2 well on the Rio
Magdalena block where Gran Tierra Energy holds a

40% net working interest. This well initially tested at

8.5 million cubic feet of gas per day and 236 barrels of

oil and condensate per day gross. We have since initiated
a long-term production test, and we plan to acquire

75 km? of 3D seismic over the Popa field to further
substantiate this discovery.

In the Llanos basin oil was discovered at the Los Aceites-1
well on the Guachiria block by Solana Resources (now a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Gran Tierra Energy) where the
Company had a 70% net working interest. This well initially
tested at 5,645 BOPD gross, and 1,200 BOPD gross in long-
term testing. In 2009 we sold our interest in this block to
Lewis Energy.

In 2008 we also laid the foundation for our 2009
exploration program in Colombia - we reprocessed 400
km of seismic, acquired 15 km of 2D seismic, and acquired
40 km? of 3D seismic to identify leads and prospects
throughout our acreage in that country. Based on this
new data and technical analysis we have planned seven
exploratory wells for Colombia in 2009.

Argentina

In Argentina’s Noroeste Basin, we discovered oil in 2008
at the Proa-1 well on the Surubi block in which Gran Tierra
Energy has an 85% working interest. In initial tests this
well produced 2,324 BOPD gross, and 900 BOPD gross in
long-term tests.

Peru

We believe Gran Tierra Energy has the potential to gen-
erate substantial additional value over the mid-term
through ongoing exploration of its land position in Peru.
We are currently preparing for the next stage of exploration
on Blocks 122 and 128 on the eastern flank of the Marafion
Basin in northeastern Peru, on the crest of the Iquitos Arch.
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Containing 3.4 million acres of unexplored land, we believe
these blocks hold tremendous potential for the Company.
More than one billion barrels of recoverable oil has been
discovered in the Marafion Basin around the flanks of

the Iquitos Arch to date, and interpretation of the 20,000
linear kilometer survey completed in 2008 helped us to
identify 24 leads on our acreage. Most importantly, the
data confirms the crest of the arch lies under Block 122.

In 2009, we will work towards completing environmental
and social impact assessments that will allow us to

move forward with seismic acquisition and drilling
stratigraphic tests. Once we receive approval from the
relevant government authorities, we will follow-up on
these leads by acquiring 500 km of 2D seismic data in late
2009 and early 2010, with the intention of initiating drilling
stratigraphic tests in 2010.

145% Production Growth

Gran Tierra Energy’s consolidated production net of
royalties increased 145% to 1.3 million barrels in 2008
compared with 0.5 million barrels in 2007.

Despite a temporary reduction of our production in
Colombia fate in the year as a result of civil strikes,

2008 production net of royalties increased by 226% with
1.1 million barrels compared to 0.3 million barrels in

2007. Our production growth in Colombia was primarily
driven by the success of our 2007 exploration program
which led to two oil field discoveries in the Putumayo
Basin: Costayaco on the Chaza Block and Juanambu in
the Guayuyaco Block. Production from these discoveries
commenced in the third quarter of 2007. Over the course
of 2008 we drilled five wells in the Costayaco field, and
announced the successful completion of four as producers.
In 2009, we intend to augment production by drilling
four additional development wells in the Costayaco field.

Oil production in Argentina for 2008 was 0.2 million
barrels net of royalties, a 16% increase over production in
2007; this growth was driven primarily by Proa-1, our 2008
oil discovery in the Surubi Block

$177 Million Cash — No Debt

Gran Tierra Energy’s balance sheet improved dramatically
through the year; at year end we reported cash and cash
equivalents of US$176.8 million, with an additional USS150
million available under existing undrawn bank lines, and
no debt. The combination of our strong balance sheet
and cash flow from increasing production leaves us well
capitalized to fund further exploration activities as we
exploit our extensive land position. We intend to execute

our 2009 work program and budget with available cash
and cash flow, without touching our unused line of credit.

We also believe that lower commodity prices and
constrained access to capital globally could create
additional opportunities to acquire key assets at
reasonable valuations. The Company is well positioned
to act on these as they emerge, but only if there is a
compelling strategic and commercial case to be made.
Gran Tierra Energy is positioned to grow through the drill
bit on our existing lands.

Looking to the Future

Our management team is optimistic about the progress we
are making in 2009 on our prospects in Colombia and Peru,
and our position in Argentina.

In Colombia we have further defined the boundaries of the
Costayaco field, divested certain non-core assets, and will
pursue high potential prospects with six more exploration
wells planned in addition to the well that was already
drilled in 2009.

In Peru, we have expanded our environmental assessment
to expedite our exploration program on Blocks 122 and

128. We are preparing to submit our assessment to the
government, and looking forward to launching our seismic
acquisition and subsequent drilling campaign.

In Argentina, we are maintaining our position as the
largest landholder in the prospective Noroeste basin,
limiting investment untif there is further clarity on the
investment climate in the country.

I would like to thank the Gran Tierra Energy team for
their outstanding performance in 2008, and our growing
shareholder base for their continued support. | look
forward to updating you on our progress in the quarters
ahead. As 2009 unfolds, our experienced and disciplined
management team intends to continue to execute our
strategy, creating value sensibly and methodically with
the drill bit on our lands in South America.

Dana Coffield
President and CEO
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Cautionary Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 (the
Securities Act) and Section 2iE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act). All statements other than statements

of historical facts included in this Annual Report including without limitation statements in the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations regarding our financial position, estimated quantities and net present
values of reserves, business strategy, plans and objectives of our management for future operations, covenant compliance and
those statements preceded by, followed by or that otherwise include the words “believe”, “expects”, “anticipates”, “intends”,
“estimates”, “projects”, “target”, “goal”, “plans”, “objective”, “should”, or similar expressions or variations on such expressions are
forward-looking statements. We can give no assurances that the assumptions upon which the forward-looking statements are
based will prove to be correct and because forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, actual results may
differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. There are a number of risks, uncertainties
and other important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements,
including, but not limited to, the following:

Risks Related to Our Business

. Our lack of diversification will increase the risk of an investment in our common stock.

« We may be unable to obtain additional capital that we will require to implement our business plan, which could
restrict our ability to grow.

« Our business may suffer If we do not attract and retain talented personnel.

+Unanticipated problems in our operations may harm our business and our viability.

« Local legal and regulatory systems in which we operate may create uncertainty regarding our rights and
operating activities, which may harm our ability to do business.

«  Strategic relationships upon which we may rely are subject to change, which may diminish our ability to conduct
our operations.

- Competition in obtaining rights to explore and develop oil and gas reserves and to market our production
may impair our business.

« We may not be able to effectively manage our growth, which may harm our profitability.

-+ We may have difficulty distributing our production, which could harm our financial condition.

- Maintaining and improving our financial controls may strain our resources and divert management'’s attention,
and If we are not able to report that we have effective internal controls our stock price may suffer.

- Integration of Gran Tierra Energy and Solana’s businesses, personnel and financial controls may be more difficult
than expected, which could strain the combined Company operations.

. Guerrilla activity in Colombia could disrupt or delay our operations, and we are concerned about safeguarding
our operations and personnel in Colombia.

- Our oil sales will depend on a relatively small group of customers, which could adversely affect our financial results

- Our operations involve substantial costs and are subject to certain risks because the oil and gas industries in the
countries in which we operate are less developed.

. Ourbusiness is subject to local legal, political and ecanomic factors which are beyond our control, which could
impair our ability to expand our operations or operate profitably.

- Negative economic, political and regulatory developments in Argentina, including export controls may
negatively affect our operations.

. The United States government may impose economic or trade sanctions on Colombia that could resultin a
significant loss to us.

-+ Maintaining good community relationships and being a good corporate citizen may be costly and difficult
to manage.

- Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations may affect our financial results.

. Exchange controls and new taxes could materially affect our ability to fund our operations and realize profits
from our foreign operations.

< We must maintain effective registration statements for all of our private placements of our common stock.
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Risks Related to Our industry

Unless we are able to replace our reserves, and develop oil and gas reserves on an economically viable basis,
our reserves, production and cash flows may decline as a result.

We are required to obtain licenses and permits to conduct our business and failure to obtain these licenses
could cause significant delays and expenses that could materially impact our business.

Our exploration for oil and natural gas is risky and may not be commercially successful, impairing our ability
to generate revenues from our operations.

Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves that we make may be inaccurate and our actual revenues may be
lower, and our operating expenses may be higher than our financial projections.

If oil and natural gas prices decrease, we may be required to take write-downs of the carrying value of our oil
and natural gas properties.

Drilling new wells could result in new liabilities, which could endanger our interests in our properties and assets.
Our inability to obtain necessary facilities and/or equipment could hamper our operations.
Decommissioning costs are unknown and may be substantial; unplanned costs could divert resources from
other projects.

Drilling oil and gas wells and production and transportation activity could be hindered by earthquakes and
weather-related operating risks.

Prices and markets for oil and natural gas are unpredictable and tend to fluctuate significantly, which could
reduce profitability, growth and the value of Gran Tierra Energy.

Penalties we may incur could impair our business.

Environmental risks may adversely affect our business.

Our insurance may be inadequate to cover liabilities we may incur.

Policies, procedures and systems to safeguard employee health, safety and security may not be adequate
Challenges to our properties may impact our financial condition.

We will rely on technology to conduct our business and our technology could become ineffective or obsolete.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

The market price of our common stock may be highly volatile and subject to wide fluctuations.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly, and these fluctuations may cause our stock price to decline.
We do not expect to pay dividends in the foreseeable future.

Gran Tierra Energy may not have sufficient shares to acquire other businesses or assets.

These risk factors are discussed in more detail in Part [, Item 1A “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009, and we encourage readers to read those risk factors to
better understand the risks we face. The information included herein is given as of the date of printing this Annual Report
and, except as otherwise required by the federal securities laws, we disclaim any obligations or undertaking to publicly
release any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained in this Annual Report to reflect any change

in our expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement

is based.
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Selected Financial Data

Year Ended Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
{thousands of L.S. dollars, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005
Revenue and other income
Oil and natural gas sales S 31,853 S 11,721 5 1,059
Interest 425 352 -
F 32,278 12,073 1,059
Expenéeé
Operating 10,474 4,233 395
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 9,415 4.088 462
: General and administrative 10,232 6,999 2,482
Liguidated damages 7,367 1,528 -
Derivative financial instruments (gain) loss 3,040 - -
Foreign exchange (gain) loss (78) 371
40,450 17.219 3308
Income {loss) before income tax (8,172) (5,146) (2,249)
Income taxes (295) (678) ’ 29
Net income (loss) S 8,467} § (5,824) S (2,220)
Net income {loss) per commaon share — basic S 0.09) 3 (.08 S 0.16)
Net income (loss) per common share — diluted S .09 S (0.08) § 0.16)
tData
Cash and cash equivalents S 18,189 S 24,101 S 2,221
Working capital (including cash) 8,058 14,541 2,765
Oil and gas properties 53,202 56,093 7,887
Deferred tax asset—long-term 1.839 444 29
Total assets 112,797 105,537 12,371
Deferred tax Hability—long-term 10,567 9,876 =
Other long-term liabilities 1,986 634 63
Shareholders’ equity S 76,792 S 76,195 S 11,039

We made our initial acquisition of oil and gas producing and non-producing properties in Argentina in September 2005 for a
total purchase price of approximately $7 million. Prior to that time we had no revenues. In june 2006, we acquired our Argosy
assets for consideration of $37.5 million cash, 870,647 shares of our common stock and overriding and net profit interests in
certain assets valued at ST million. in November 2008, we acquired Solana for $671.8 million through the issuance to Solana
stockholders of either shares of our common stock or shares of common stock of a subsidiary of Gran Tierra Energy.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This report, and in particular this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,
contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Please review the cautionary language in the section entitled “Cautionary Information
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Financial
Statements ar.d Supplementary Data.

Overview

We are an independent international energy company incorporated in the United States and engaged in oil and natural gas
exploration, development and production. We are headquartered in Calgary, Alberta, Canada and operate in South America in
Colombia, Argentina and Peru.

In September 2005, we acquired our initial oil and gas interests and properties, which were in Argentina. During 2006.
we increased our oil and gas interest and property base through further acquisitions in Colombia, Argentina and Peru. We
funded acquisitions of our properties in Colombia and Argentina through a series of private placements of our securities that
occurred between September 2005 and February 2006 and an additional private placement that occurred in June 2006.

Effective November 14, 2008, we completed the acquisition of Solana Resources Limited (*solana”). Upon completion
of the transaction, Solana became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Gran Tierra Energy. Solana is an international
resource company engaged in the acquisition, exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas. Solana is
incorporated in Alberta, Canada, with its head office in Calgary, Alberta. At the date of acquisition, Solana held various
working interests in nine blocks in Colombia and was the operator of six of those blocks, four of which contained producing
assets. As a result of the acquisition, Gran Tierra Energy has increased its working interest in two of the producing blocks
and has a working interest in seven new blocks.

The oil and gas industry has been adversely impacted by the downturn in the global economy and the decline in crude
oil prices. Although our revenue has been negatively affected by these lower oil prices, our current liquidity position has
mitigated the impact of these adverse market conditions. We believe that our current operations and capital expenditure
program can be maintained from cash flow from existing operations, cash on hand and our credit facilities, barring
unforeseen events. We also have the ability to defer or cancel portions of our capital expenditure program should our
operating cash flows decline as a result of further reductions in crude oil prices.

Business Strategy

Our plan is to continue to build an international oil and gas company through acquisition and exploitation of under-
developed prospective oil and gas assets, and to develop these assets with exploration and development drilling to grow
commercial reserves and production. Our initial focus is in select countries in South America, currently Colombia, Argentina,
and Peru; other regions will be considered for future growth should those regions make strategic and commercial sense in
creating additional value.

We have applied a two-stage approach to growth, initially establishing a base of production, development and exploration
assets by selective acquisitions, and secondly, achieving future growth through drilling. We intend to duplicate this business
model in other areas as opportunities arise. We pursue opportunities in countries with proven petroleum systems: attractive
royalty, taxation and other fiscal terms; and stable legal systems. In the petroleum industry, geologic settings with proven
petroleum source rocks, migration pathways, reservoir rocks and traps are referred to as petroleum systems.
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Financial and Operational Highlights

% %
Change 2007 Change 2006
Estimated Proved Oil and Gas Reserves,

net of royalties—miltion barrels of oil 200 6.4 113 3.0

Production—Barrels of Oif Equivalent per Day 144 1.486 109 710
Barrels of Oif Equivalent Prices Realized 45 S 58.73 30 S
Revenue and Interest (5000's) 253 S 32,278 167 5
Net income (Loss) (S000°s) 377 S (8,467) [4sy s
Net Income (Loss) Per Share—Basic 311 S (0.09) {13) 5
Capital Expenditures {(5000's) 181 S 16,625 45 S
Cash & Cash Equivalents ($000's) 872 S 18,189 ( S
Property, Plant & Equipment ($000's) 1,101 S 63,918 13 5

(1) The 2008 results include the operations of Solana subsequent to its acquisition on November 14. 2008,

Gran Tierra Energy’s financial and operational results during the three-year period from 2006 to 2008 reflect the success of
our strategy since commencing operations in 200!

.

We acquired oil and gas properties in Argentina, Colombia and Peru in 2005 and 2006, conducted an active
exploration, drilling and development program in the three-year period, and further increased our oil and gas
interests in Colombia through the acquisition of Solana in late 2008,

Gran Tierra Energy’s estimated proved oil and gas reserves as at December 31, 2008, have tripled compared with

December 31, 2007, and have increased by 540% since December 31, 2006. The contributing factors were the oil
discoveries in Colombia as well as the acquisition of Solana.

Production of crude oil and natural gas (net of inventory adjustments) incre
mainly due to the impact of production from the mid-2007 oil discovery in the Costayaco field in Colombia.

ased by 411% from 2006 to 2008,

Increased production and higher oil prices resulted in an 845% increase in total revenues over the three-year
period.

Net income for 2008 amounted to $23.5 million, or $0.19 per share, a significant improvement from the losses
recorded in 2007 and 2006. Higher oil revenues were partially offset by increases in operating expenditures
due to expanded Colombian operations, depletion expense associated with the acquisition of Solana and
higher production levels, general and administrative expenses incurred due to expanded activities and
regulatory compliance, foreign exchange losses associated with the acquisition of Solana, and incorme tax
expense resulting from the profitability of Colombian operations. Prior year losses also included liquidated
damages which represented damages payable to stockholders as a result of certain registration statements

not becoming effective within the periods specified in the share registration rights agreements for the shares
in

f
purchased as well as losses from derivative financial instruments.
Oil and gas property expenditures in 2008 and 2007 reflect the Costayaco field exploration and development
program, the successful drilling of the Proa-1 exploration well in the Argentine Surubi block in 2008, and
continued geological survey work carried out in Peru. The 2006 capital expenditures reflect the initial
acquisition of oil and gas interests in Colombia and Argentina.
Our significant cash position of $176.8 million at December 31, 2008 resulted primarily from positive cash flows

from operations as well as the net cash balance of $81.9 million acquired as part of the acquisition of Solana.

Property, plant & equipment as at December 31, 2008 was $767.6 million, a significant increase from prior years,

reflecting our ongoing exploration and development program and recording of the Solana assets at thelr fair
values of $682.0 million at the acquisition date.
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Business Combinations

Solana Resources Limited

On November 14, 2008, Gran Tierra Energy completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding common shares of Solana.
Pursuant to the terms of the acquisition, each holder of Solana shares received either: (i) 0.9527918 of a share of Gran Tierra
Energy common stock for each Solana share held; or (i) 0.9527918 of an exchangeable share of Gran Tierra Exchangeco

Inc., a Canadian subsidiary of Gran Tierra Energy, for each Solana share held. The share exchange resulted in Gran Tierra
Energy acquiring ali of the 126,597,402 issued and outstanding common shares of Solana in exchange for 120,620,967

shares comprised of 51,516,332 shares of Gran Tierra Energy common stock and 69,104,635 exchangeable shares. In addition,
pursuant to the terms of the acquisition: (i) Gran Tierra Energy issued options to acquire 466,869 shares of Gran Tierra Energy
common stock in exchange for 490,001 Solana options; and (ii) 7,500,000 Solana warrants outstanding at the date of the
acquisition were assumed by Gran Tierra Energy and are exercisable for 7,145,938 shares of Gran Tierra Energy common stock
(by applying the exchange ratio).

On November 14, 2008 and prior to the November 15, 2008 deadline, as contractually agreed, Gran Tierra Energy also
issued two million shares of Gran Tierra Energy common stock to acquire the participating interest in Solana’s properties
that, under the Colombian Participation Agreement entered into in 2006 as part of the acquisition of Argosy Energy
International (“Argosy”), would otherwise accrue to the former owners of Argosy. The shares were issued in a private
placement and the resale of the shares was registered pursuant to a registration rights agreement.

Upon completion of the transaction, Solana became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Gran Tierra Energy. On a
diluted basis, upon the closing of the acquisition, Solana and Gran Tierra Energy security holders owned approximately 49%
and 51% of the combined company, respectively.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method, with Gran Tierra Energy being the acquirer, whereby the
Solana assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their fair values at the acquisition date of November 14, 2008
and the results of Solana have been consolidated with Gran Tierra Energy since that date. The fair value of Gran Tierra Energy’s
shares was determined as the weighted average closing price of the common shares of Gran Tierra Energy for the five-day
period around the announcement date of July 29, 2008, being two days prior to and after the acquisition was agreed to and
announced, and the announcement date. The fair value of each exchangeable share issued is equal to the fair value of a
common share of Gran Tierra Energy. The following tables show the purchase price and its allocation to the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed:

(thousands of U.S. dollars)

Purchase Price:

Common Shares/Exchangeable Shares issued net of share issue costs S 631,451
Warrants 23,594
Stock options 1,345
Two million common shares issued under Colombian Participation Agreement 10,470
Transaction costs 4,938
S 671,798

Purchase Price Allocated:

Oil and Gas Properties
Proved S 320,773
Unproved 360,493
Other assets 741
Other long-term assets 1,329
Goodwill 83,577
Net working capital (including cash acquired) 99,727
Asset retirement obligations (3.148)
Deferred income taxes (191,694)
S 671,798
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Argosy Energy International

On june 20, 2006, Gran Tierra Energy acquired all of the limited partnership interests of Argosy and all of the issued and
outstanding capital stock of Argosy Energy Corp. from Crosby Capital LLC. Consideration paid to Crosby consisted of
$37.5 million cash, 870,647 shares of Gran Tierra Energy common stock and overriding and net profit interests in certain of
Argosy’s assets valued at $1 million. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method, and the results of Argosy
have been consolidated with Gran Tierra Energy from June 20, 2006.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31

% 5
Consolidated Results of Operations” Chang/; 2007 Changﬁ 2006
{thousands of U.5. dollars) -
Revenue 254 S 31,853 172 S 11,721
Interest 188 425 21 352
253 32,278 167 12073
Operating expenses 83 10,474 147 4,233
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 173 9,415 130 4,088
General and administrative expenses 82 10,232 46 6,999
Other (42) 10,329 444 1.899
72 40,450 135 1,7‘21‘)4
Income (loss) before income taxes (644) (8,172) 59 (5,146)
Income taxes 7,000 (295) (56) (678)
Net income (loss) 377y S (8,467) 45 S (5,824)
Oil and NGUs (“bbl™)# 145 541,069 111 256,921
Natural gas (*mcf”) (45) 26,631 (36} 41,447
Total production {("boe”)@ 145 542,401 109 258,993
Oil and NGL's {*per bbl™) 44 S 58.79 30 s 45.26
Natural gas (“per mcf”) 192 S 1.69 7 s 1.82
sulidat HiS o
Revenue 45 S 58.73 30 S 45.26
Interest 18 0.78 43) 1.36
44 59.51‘ 28 46.62
Operating expenses {25) 19.31 18 16.35
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 12 17.36 10 15.79
General and administrative expenses (26) 18.86 (30) 27.02
Other expenses {76} 19.04 160 7.33
30 74.57 12 66.49
incorne {loss) before income taxes (322) {15.06) (24) {19.87}
income taxes 2,819 (0.54) (79) {2.62)
Net income {loss) (213)  §  {15.60) (31) S (22.2‘5

(1) The 2008 results include the operations of Solana subsequent to our acquisition of Solana on November 14, 2008.

(2) Gas volumes are converted to barrels of oil equivalent (*boe”) at the rate of 20 thousand cubic feet (“mcf"} of gas per barrel of oil based upon
the approximate relative values of natural gas and oil. Natural gas liquid (*NGL") volumes are converted to boe on a one-to-one basis with oil.

(3) Production represents production volumes adjusted for inventory changes.
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Consolidated Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2008 compared to the Results for the Year Ended
December 31, 2007

In 2008, a 145% increase in crude oil production and a 44% increase in realized prices of crude oil were the major
contributing factors to net income of $23.5 million compared to a net loss of $8.5 million recorded in 2007.

our revenue and interest increased 253% to $114.0 million in 2008 compared to 2007 due to increased production and
higher crude oil prices. Crude oil and NGL production in 2008 increased t0 1,328,145 barrels compared to 541,069 barrels in
2007 due to the inclusion of a full year of production from the Costayaco and Juanambu fields in Colombia. These fields
were discovered in 2007 and the discovery wells came on production during the second half of 2007. In 2008, we drilled
and completed four development wells at Costayaco and these wells were put on production during the course of the year.
Average realized crude oil prices increased to $84.89 per barrel from $58.79 per barrel in 2007 reflecting the higher West Texas
Intermediate (“WTI") oil prices experienced during the first three quarters of 2008. Solana properties also contributed to the
overall production levels since acquisition.

Operating expenses for 2008 amounted to $19.2 million, an 83% increase from the prior year. The increase was primarily
due to the increased production in Colombia as well as the addition of the post-acquisition operating expenses of Solana
which amounted to $3.6 million. However, in 2008, the new fields in Colombia with high production wells and lower
operating expenses resulted in operating expenses of $14.46 per boe, a 25% decline from 2007.

In 2008, higher praduction levels as well as the amortization of $6.9 million related to the recording of Solana’s
property, plant and equipment at fair value resulted in a 173% increase in depletion, depreciation and accretion (“DD&A”)
to $25.7 million. A 12% increase in the average depletion rate to $19.37 per boe in 2008 was primarily due to the significant
additions to the proved depletable cost base partially offset by higher proved reserves in Colombia.

General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses of $18.6 million for 2008 was 82% higher than 2007 due to increased
salaries and benefits and stock-based compensation of $5.5 million mainly as a result of the expanded operations in
Colombia and the 2008 option grants, as well as higher corporate stewardship costs including Sarbanes-Oxley compliance
requirements and ongoing expenses related to securities registration.

Other expenses of $6.0 million in 2008 represent primarily a foreign exchange loss which resulted from the translation of
a deferred tax liability recorded on the purchase of Solana. This deferred tax liability, a monetary liability, is denominated in
the local currency of Colombia and as a result, a foreign exchange loss has been calculated on conversion to the U.S. dollar
functional currency. Other expenses in 2007 comprised mainly liquidated damages of $7.4 million and financial derivatives
losses of $3.0 million. Liquidated damages represented damages payable to stockholders as a result of certain registration
statements not becoming effective within the periods specified in the share registration rights agreements for the underlying
securities. There were no liquidated damages in 2008. Financial derivative losses represented losses recorded from the costless
collar financial derivative contract of crude oil prices entered into pursuant to the terms and conditions of Gran Tierra Energy’s
credit facility. There were no significant gains or losses related to financial derivative instruments in 2008.

Income tax expense for 2008 amounted to $20.9 million compared to $0.3 million recorded in 2007. The increase resulted
primarily from the Colombian operations which generated net income before taxes of $58.5 million in 2008 compared to
$11.5 million recorded in 2007. Our Colombian operations claimed incentives in 2008 as a result of increased additional
Colombian tax capital investment in producing oil and natural gas properties. These additional tax incentives decrease our
current income tax otherwise payable by approximately $3.8 million. The tax expense related to our Colombian operating
segment was $22.1 million, offset by a recovery of S1.1million for our Argentina segment.

Consolidated Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 as compared to the Results for the Year Ended
December 31, 2006

For the year ended December 31, 2007, Gran Tierra Energy recorded a net loss of $8.5 million compared to a net loss of $5.8
million recorded in 2006. increased revenue levels from higher crude oil production and prices were more than offset by
higher operating and general and administrative expenses associated with the expanded activity levels as well as increased
corporate stewardship costs. The 2007 results were also adversely affected by expenses incurred due to liquidated damages
and losses from derivative financial instruments.

Revenue and interest of $32.3 million in 2007 increased 167% from 2006 due to a % increase in production of crude
oil and NGL to 541,069 barrels and a 30% increase in average price received per barrel of oil to $58.79. The increase in
production was due primarily to the inclusion of a full year of Colombian and Argentine production and the commencement

28



Gran Tierra Energy Annual Report 2008

of production at the beginning of the third quarter of 2007 from two new discovery wells in Colombia. The 2006 production
included Colombian production subsequent to Gran Tierra Energy’s acquisition of its Colombian properties in June 2006.

In 2007, operating expenses increased by 147% to $10.5 million, reflecting the inclusion in 2007 of a full year of
Colombian and Argentine operating activities for those properties. Commencement of operations for two new discovery
wells in Colombia in the third quarter of 2007 also contributed to the increase in operating costs. On a boe bass,
operating expenses increased by 18% to $19.31 per boe mainly due to costs associated with budgeted workover projects
undertaken to sustain production.

DD&A for the 2007 fiscal year increased by 130% to $9.4 million mainly due to higher production levels. The depletion
rate on a boe basis of $17.36 increased by 10% primarily due to a higher proved depletable cost base in Colombia which more
than offset the increase in proved reserve levels.

G&A costs for 2007 increased 46% to $10.2 million. The increase in G&A was due to the inclusion of a full year of business
activities related to the acquisition of properties in Colombia and additional properties in Argentina. Higher salaries and
benefits and stock-based compensation by $2.8 million as well as increased corporate stewardship costs including Sarbanes-
Oxley compliance and securities registration related costs accounted for the majority of the increase. Between the two years,
G&A per boe declined by 30% to $18.86 per boe reflecting the increase in production which more than offset the incremental
G&A expenses contributed by expanded activity levels.

Other expenses of $10.3 million comprised mainly liquidated damages and losses from derivative instruments.
Liquidated damages of $7.4 million (2006—51.5 million) represent damages payable to stockholders as a result of certain
registration statements not becoming effective within the periods specified in the share registration rights agreements for
the underlying securities. Financial derivative losses of $3.0 million (2006—nil) represent losses recorded from a costless
collar financial derivative contract of crude oil prices entered into pursuant to the terms and conditions of Gran Tierra
Energy’s credit facility.

The income tax expense for 2007 decreased to $0.3 million from $0.7 million in 2006. The Colombian operations
generated a net income before tax of $11.5 million in 2007, which resulted in a local income tax liability, offset by a 2007
income tax recovery arising from losses of $2.5 million incurred in Argentina. In Colombia, we used available prior period
loss carryforwards and Colombian income tax investment incentives, which permitted additional tax deductions associated
with capital investment in producing oil and natural gas properties, to decrease our current income tax otherwise payable.
In 2006, the Colombia operations generated income before tax of $1.5 million, which resulted in a local income tax liability
of $0.8 million, offset by an income tax recovery of $0.1 million arising from losses incurred in Argentina.

Estimated Proved Oil and Gas Reserves

Estimated proved oil and gas reserves, net of royalties, as of December 31, 2008, were 19.2 million barrels of oil, a 200%
increase from the estimated proved reserves as at December 31, 2007. The increase resulted from our successful development
drilling program in Colombia which led to new discoveries in Costayaco and juanambu fields and the addition of crude oil
reserves associated with the acquisition of Solana. The new discoveries in Colombia contributed approximately 5 million
barrels of oil to our reserve base and the acquisition of Solana contributed approximately 8.5 million barrels of oil.

The estimated proved reserves as at December 31, 2007 of 6.4 million barrels of crude oil, increased by 113% compared with
2006 year-end reserve levels mainly due to the successful development drilling program in the Costayaco field in Colombia.

Segmented Results of Operations

Our operations are carried out in Colombia, Argentina and Peru, and we are headquartered in Calgary, Alberta, Canada.
our reportable segments include Colombia, Argentina and Corporate with the latter including the results of our initial
activities in Peru. In 2008, Colombia generated 91.4% of our revenues and reflects the operations of Solana for the period
from the date of acquisition on November 14, 2008 to December 31, 2008.
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Segmented Results of Qperations—Colombia

Year Ended Decemnber 31,

Segmented Results of Operations - Colombia®
(thousands of U.S. dollars)

revenue

interest

Operating expenses
Depletion, depreciation and accretion
General and administrative expenses

Other

Segmented income before income taxes

tion, Net of Royalties
Oil and NGUs {“bbi")®
Natural gas ("mcf”)

Total production ("boe”)#

Oit and NGU's (“per bbl")

Natural gas ("per mcf”)

Revenue

Interest

Operating expenses

Depletion, depreciation and a

General and administrative expenses

Other expenses

Segmented income before income taxes

(1} The 2008 results include the operations of Solana subsequent to its acquisition on Novernber 14, 2008.
{2) NGLvolumes are converted to boe on a one-to-one basis with oil.

% Change 2007 % Change 2006
335 3 23,749 259 S 6,612
348 222 - -
335 23,971 263 6.612
196 4,097 195 1,387
224 6,850 175 2,494
181 1,696 89 897

{4,345) (156) (145) 348
266 12,487 144 5,126
409 S 11,484 673 $ 1,486
226 333,157 158 129,209
226 333,157 158 129,209

33 $ 71.28 39 S 51.17
- S - - S -
33 S 71.28 39 S 51.17
37 0.67 -
33 71.95 41 51.17
(9) 12.30 15 10.73
(1 20.56 7 19.30
(14) 5.09 (27) 6.95
(1.397) (0.47) (117 2.69
12 37.48 (6) 39.67
56 N 34.47 200 S 1150

(3) Production represents production volumes adjusted for inventory changes.
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Segmented Results of Operations—Colombia for the Year Ended December 31, 2008 compared to the Results for the Year Ended
December 31, 2007

For the year ended December 31, 2008, income before income taxes from Colombia amounted to $58.5 million compared to
$11.5 million recorded in 2007, primarily the result of increased production of crude oil and higher net realized prices partially
offset by increased operating expenses, DD&A and G&A. On a per barrel basis, the pre-tax income for the current year was
$53.87 versus $34.47 recorded in the prior year.

In 2008, Production of crude oil and NGL increased by 226% t0 1,085,198 barrels compared to 333,157 barrels in 2007.
These production levels are after government royalties ranging from 8% to 20% and third-party royalties of 2% t0 10%.

Gran Tierra Energy’s Colombian operating results for 2008 are principaily impacted by new oit production resulting from
the success of our 2007 exploration program, undertaken in the first half of 2007, where we made two field discoveries,
Costayaco in the Chaza block and Juanambu in the Guayuyaco block. Production from these discoveries commenced in
the third quarter of 2007 and has increased during 2008 as the result of development drilling, and with the addition of
production from the Costayaco—2, 3, 4 and 5 wells during the course of 2008.

Our production is also impacted by political and economic factors in Colombia. In the first quarter of 2008, sections of
one of the Ecopetrol pipelines were blown up by guerillas, which temporarily reduced our deliveries to Ecopetrol, resulting in
higher than average Colombia crude oil inventories at March 31, 2008. Ecopetrol was able to restore deliveries within one to
two weeks of these attacks.

On November 24, 2008, we temporarily suspended production operations in the Costayaco and Juanambu oil fields. This
was as a result of a declaration of a state of emergency and force majeure by Ecopetrol, due to a general strike in the region
where our operations are located, resulting in higher than average Colombia crude oil inventories at December 31,2008. On
January 12, 2009, crude oil transportation resumed in southern Colombia as a result of the lifting of the strike at the Orito
facilities operated by Ecopetrol.

The incremental production volumes from Solana properties from the date of acquisition of November 14, 2008 to
December 31, 2008 was 69,747 barrels of oil and 14,559 mcf of natural gas, and it was severely impacted by the general strike
affecting its two major producing fields of Costayaco and Juanambu.

Revenue and interest were positively impacted by significantly improved net realized crude oil prices. The average net
realized prices for crude oil, which are based on WTI prices, increased by 33% to $95.04 per barrel in 2008. The combination
of increased production and higher realized prices resulted in our revenue levels from Colombia in 2008 increasing by 335%
to $103.2 million.

Operating expenses increased to $12.1 million from $4.1 million last year. The increased operating expenses resulted from
the increase in production, inclusion of post-acquisition operating expenses of Solana which amounted to $3.6 million and
the increased cost associated with trucking oil from Costayaco to our pipeline. However, the increased production resulted in
areduction of operating expenses on a per barrel basis to $11.16 compared to $12.30 per barrel incurred last year.

For 2008, DD&A increased to $22.2 million from $6.9 million recorded in 2007. Increased production levels coupled with a
higher depletable cost base including Solana properties, partially offset by higher reserve levels, accounted for the increase
in DD&A. The incremental DD&A recorded as a result of Solana’s acquisition was $6.9 million. Aithough our Colombian
proved reserves increased significantly in 2007 and 2008 as a result of our successful exploration and development activities,
we also invested much of our 2007 and 2008 capital spending on the Colombian development program. Our acquisition of
Solana in the fourth quarter of 2008 further increased our proved reserves and our depletable cost base. Thus, the increase
in DD&A was due to the significant increases in the depletable basis for the fair value of the Solana proved reserves acquired
and future capital expenditures associated with the development of the undeveloped proved reserves at December 31, 2008.
These future capital expenditures are for further development well drilling and related infrastructure costs to deliver the
increased production volumes from Costayaco. On a per boe basis, the DD&A in Colombia for the current year was $20.44,
essentially unchanged from 2007 due to the significant increase in proved reserves offsetting the impact of a higher
depletable cost pool.
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Higher management and administrative expenses incurred to manage the increased level of development and operating
activities resulting from the successful 2007 exploration and 2008 development activities resulted in G&A expense
increasing to $4.8 million in 2008 from $1.7 million incurred in 2007. On a per barrel basis, the G&A expense decreased by
14% 10 $4.39 for the current year.

Other items in 2008 include a foreign exchange loss of $6.6 million which primarily resulted from the translation of a
deferred tax liability recognized on the purchase of Solana. This deferred tax liability, a monetary liability, is denominated
in the local currency of the Colombian foreign operations and, as a result, a foreign exchange toss has been calculated on
conversion to the U.S. dollar functional currency.

Segmented Results of Operations--Colombia for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 compared to the Resuits for the Yeu: tnded
December 31, 2006

Increased production levels in 2007 as well as higher realized crude oil prices increased income before income taxes in
Colombia by 673% to $11.5 million from $1.5 million in 2006. The improvement in revenue was partially offset by higher costs
resulting from expanded activity levels. On a per barrel basis, income before income taxes tripled to $34.47 per boe compared
to 2006.

Crude oil and NGL production, after government royalties ranging from 8% to 20% and a third-party 2% overriding
royalty, increased by 158% to 333,157 barrels in 2007. The increase in production was due primarily to the inclusion of a full
year of Colombian production and the commencement of production at the beginning of the third quarter from the two new
discovery wells, one in the Juanambu area of the Guayuyaco block and the other in the Costayaco area of the Chaza block.
The 2006 production consisted solely of Colombian production subsequent to Gran Tierra Energy's entry into Colombia
through the acquisition of Argosy in june 2006.

Crude oil and NGL revenue, net of royalties, for 2007 increased to $23.7 million, or $71.28 per barrel, compared to
$6.6 million, or $51.17 per barrel for 2006. In addition to the increase in production resulting from the new discovery wells and
a full year of production from the other areas, revenue increased due to the higher WTI crude oil price in 2007.

Afull year of Colombian operating activities and the commencement of operations of the new discovery wells at
Juanambu and Costayaco in the third quarter of 2007 resulted in a 195% increase in operating expenses to $4.1 million in
2007. On a per boe basis the operating costs increased by 15% to $12.30 per boe due to the inclusion of budgeted workover
expense carried out mainly in the Guayuyaco block .

fn 2007, DD&A increased 175% to $6.9 million primarily due to the increase in production over the prior year. Gran Tierra
Energy invested much of its 2007 capital spending on the Colombia exploration program resulting in a significant increase in
the Colombian depletable cost pool. However, the effect of this on depletion was mostly offset by a significant increase in our
proved reserves. As a result, our depletion rate increased only by 7% to $20.56 per boe as compared to $19.30 per boe for 2006.

G&A for 2007 increased to $1.7 million from $0.9 incurred in 2006 due to the inclusion of a full year of business activities
related to the acquisition of the Argosy properties in Colombia. In 2006, G&A included expenses incurred from the date of
acquisition of Argosy on June 21, 2006 to the end of the year.
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Capital Program—Colombia

Gran Tierra Energy’s focus in 2008 was to develop the Costayaco field to increase our production and reserves, in addition to
undertaking additional oil exploration efforts to further define the potential of our acreage in Colombia. In support of this
strategy, our capital expenditures in Colombia amounted to $31.7 million in 2008. included in this amount was $6.8 million
in capital expenditures related to the Solana properties subsequent to the acquisition.

During 2008, we drilled five development wells in the Costayaco field for a net cost of $17.8 million: Costayaco-2, which
had commenced drilling in December 2007, and Costayaco-3, -4, -5 and -6. Four of these wells, Costayaco-2,-3, -4, and -5
were tested, completed and brought on production in 2008. Costayaco-6 was testing at year end. We also completed a 15-km
8-inch pipeline to connect the Costayaco field to our existing pipeline infrastructure for a net cost of $4.0 million.

In 2008, we also spent $9.9 million on activities on our other blocks including:

+  Guayuyaco—We carried out two workovers on the jJuanambu-1 producing well.

+  Rio Magdalena—We drilled Popa-2 well, which encountered natural gas and natural gas liquids. This well was

fully funded by our partners as part of our farm-in agreement.

+  Santana—We carried out remedial work on various wells and changed the artificial lift system on one well in

the Miraflor field, adding incremental production.

+  Mecaya—We acquired 15 kilometers of 2D seismic.

+  Azar—We acquired 40 square kilometers of 30D seismic and we performed one well re-entry on the Palmera-1

well, encountering oil.

+ Guachiria Norte Block—In November 2008, we drilled an exploration well, Zafiro-1, which was dry.

+  Putumayo A&B Technical Evaluation Areas—We conducted 400 kilometers of seismic reprocessing and

geologic studies.

The main expenditure of Solana after the acquisition related to the completion of the drilling of the Zafiro-1 well in the
Guachiria Norte Block.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we spent $14.2 million on capital projects. Our focus in 2007 was on
exploration drilling and we drilled six wells during the year. We drilled successful wells in the Chaza and Guayuyaco areas
and, in March 2007, we drilled the Juanambu-1 well and encountered hydrocarbon shows in four zones. Testing established
the presence of a significant oil accumulation. We drilled and tested the Costayaco-1 well, which also indicated a significant
accumulation of oil in a number of zones. Consequently, our proved reserves in Colombia substantially increased. We put
these wells on production in the third quarter of 2007. We drilled the Juanambu-1and Costayaco-1 wells and commenced
drilling of Costayaco-2 for a net cost of $7.6 million.

We drilled four exploration wells in 2007 which comprised the Laura-1 exploration well in the Talora Block in January 2007,
the Caneyes-1 exploration well in the Rio Magdalena Block in February 2007, and the Soyona-1 and Cachapa-1 exploration
wells in the Primavera Block in April and March 2007, respectively. These wells were plugged and abandoned. We drilled the
Caneyes-1well at a net cost to us of $1.7 million and the drilling costs for the three other wells were paid by our partners.

During 2007, we incurred costs of $4.9 million on other projects including $1.7 million for completion of a 3D seismic
program in Costayaco to optimize positioning of future drilling locations and $1.2 million related to a 2D seismic program
in the Rio Magdalena block. We also relinquished ownership of the Primavera block which was acquired as part of Argosy
transaction in 2006 and acquired the Putumayo A and B technical evaluation areas.

Capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $47.2 million and were mainly comprised of the
acquisition of Argosy. Prior to June 20, 2006, we did not own any oil or gas properties in Colombia. On June 20, 2006,
we acquired Argosy and became the operator of nine blocks in Colombia. The Santana, Guayuyaco and Chaza blocks are
currently producing. The Rio Magdalena, Talora, Azar and Mecaya blocks are in their exploration phases.
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Segmented Results of Operations—Argenting

Year Ended December 31,

Segmented Results of Operations - Argentina

(thousands of U.5. dollars) % Change 2007 % Change 2006
Revenue 18 S 3,104 59 S 5,109
Interest 53 15 - -
19 8,119 59 5,109
Operating expenses 11 6,327 122 2,846
epletion, depreciation and accretion 37 2,477 60 1551
General and administrative expenses 21 1.705 52 1.123
Other expenses 266 85 - -
21 10,594 92 5,520
Segmented loss before income taxes 28 S (2,475) 502 N {411)
fuction. Net of Royalties
Oil and NGL's (“bbl™)¥ 17 207,912 63 127.712
Natural gas (“mcf”) - 26,631 (36) 41,447
Total production {“boe")"# 16 209,244 61 129,784
Oil and NGL's (“per bbl") 20s 38.76 2y s 39.41
Natural gas {“per mcf”) S 1.69 7 s 1.82
Revenue 2 $ 38.73 2y S 39.37
Interest 29 0.07 -
2 38.80 1) 39.37
Operating expenses (4 20.24 38 21.93
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 18 11.84 (1) 11.95
General and administrative expenses 4 8.15 (6) 8.65
Other expenses 212 .41 - -
4 50.64 19 42.53
Segmented loss before income taxes 10 S (11.84} 75 S [3.16)

A

(1) Gas volumes are converted to boe at the rate of 20 mcf of gas per bairel of oil based upon the approximate relative values of natural gas
and oil. NGL volurnes are converted to boe on 2 one-to-one basis with ofl.
(2} Production represents production volumes adjusted for inventory changes.

For the 2008 fiscal year, the results from Argentina reflected a pre-tax loss of $3.2 million compared to pre-tax losses of
$2.5 million and $0.4 million recorded in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively, due to higher expenses associated with
expanded activities which have more than offset the effect of production increases.

Crude oil and NGL production, after 12% royalties, increased to 242,947 barrels in 2008 compared t0 207,912 barrels in
2007 and 127,712 barrels in 2006. The increase resulted from the successful completion and testing of Proa-1 exploration well
in the Surubi block in the third quarter of 2008 with sales commencing in the fourth quarter as well as the commencement
of a full year of Argentine production in 2007 following property acquisitions made in 2006. Commencing in 2008, naturel
gas production is used for operating power generation with any excess production sold in the market.

Due to the local regulatory regimes, the average realized price for crude oil and NGL in Argentina for the past three years
has been just under $40 per barrel, Currently, the price we receive for production from our Surubi block Is 540 per barrel,
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and it is $33 per barrel for production from other areas. Furthermore, currently all oil and gas producers in Argentina are
operating without sales contracts. A new withholding tax regime was introduced in Argentina without specific guidance
as to its application. Producers and refiners of oil in Argentina have been unable to determine an agreed sales price for oil
deliveries to refineries. Along with most other oil producers in Argentina, we are continuing deliveries to the refineries and
are negotiating a price for deliveries made after December 31, 2008. The Provincial Governments have also been hurt by
these changes as their effective royalty take has been reduced by the lower sales price. We are working with other oil and gas
producers in the area, as well as Refiner S.A. and provincial governments, to lobby the federal government for change.
with regulated crude oil prices, the change in our revenues over the three-year period has been reflective of changes in
our production levels, Revenues of $9.6 million generated in 2008 compare to $8.1 million in 2007 and $5.1 million in 2006.
The increase in total expenses year-over-year was also attributable to higher production levels as well as expanded
operations. Operating expenses remained fairly constant on a boe basis between 2008 and 2007 but reflected higher
workover costs in 2007 compared with 2006. Likewise, the increase in DD&A over the three-year period was attributable
to higher production levels, increased depletable cost pools, offset partially by additional proved reserves. Increases in
stock-based compensation, higher consulting costs associated with the expanded operations and the need for increased
administration staff and professional costs associated with properties purchased late in 2006 contributed to the increase in
G&A expenses over the three-year period. On a per boe basis, the G&A stayed fairly constant at just under $9.

Capital Program—Argentina

Capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2008, amounted to $11.7 million and included drilling of the Proa-t
discovery well on the Surubi block for a net cost of $9.5 million. Proa-1 commenced production in September 2008. The
provincial oil company REFSA farmed-in to the block for a 15% working interest, and are paying their share of well costs
from their share of production from Proa-1. in 2008, other costs of $1.2 million were incurred primarily on capitalized well
workovers, well re-entries, seismic acquisition, and equipment upgrades.

In 2007, we spent $1.7 million including costs of $0.7 million for the completion of the Puesto Climaco-2 sidetrack well in
the Vinalar Block which was drilled in December 2006. Capital expenditures also included the acquisition and reprocessing of
seismic in several areas and facility upgrades in Parma Largo.

In 2006, Capital expenditures were $14.1 million and were primarily related to the purchase of the Et Vinalar and CGC
properties, development activity at Palmar Largo. and purchase of office equipment and feasehold improvermnents.

Segmented Results of Operations—Corporate

Year Ended December 31,

Segmented Results of Operations—Corporate % Yo

{thousands of U.S. dollars) Change 2007 Change 2006

Interest 10 S 188 (47) 7 S 352

Operating expenses 48 50

Depletion, depreciation and accretion 68 &3 105 42

General and administrative expenses 72 6,831 37 4,979

Liquidated damages {100} 7.367 382 1,528

Loss (gain) from derivative financial instruments {106} 3.040

Foreign exchange loss (gain) 9.871 7 {130) 23
(36) 17,369 164 6.573

Segmented loss before income taxes 37y S (17.181) 176 S (6.221)

(o8}
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in addition to the expenditures associated with the maintenance of Gran Tierra Energy’s headquarters in Calgary, Alberta,
Canada, and cost of compliance and reporting under the securities regulation, the results of the Corporate Segment include

the results of cur initial operations in Peru.

G&A Expenses
The increase in G&A expenses over the three-year period was due to higher corporate stewardship costs including Sarbanes
requirements, securities exchange listing fees in both Canada and the United States, costs related to

Oxley complianc
securities registration and higher stock-based compensation expense due to increased option grants.

Liguidated Damages
Liquidated damages of $7.4 million in fiscal year 2007 relate to liquidated damages payable to Gran Tierra Energy’s

stockholders as a result of the registration statement for 50 million units sold in the second quarter of 2006 not becoming

effective within the period specified in the share registration rights agreements for those securities. This registration

6}

statement became effective on May 14, 2007 and no additional liquidated damages were incurred after that time.

Liquidated damages of $1.5 million recorded in 2006 relate to liquidated damages payable to Gran Tierra Energy's
stockholders as a result of the registration statements for our securities issued in 2005 and 2006 not becoming effective
within the periods specified in the share registration rights agreements for those securities. The amount expensed includes
$0.3 million related t0 15,047,606 units issued in the fourth quarter of 2005 and first quarter of 2006 and $1.3 million related
to 50 million units sold in the second quarter of 2006. We did not have any liquidated damages in 2005.

On June 27, 2007, under the terms of the Registration Rights Agreements, we obtained a sufficient number of consents
from the signatories to the agreements waiving our obligation to pay in cash the accrued liquidated damages. We agreed
to amend the terms of the warrants issued in the 2006 offering by reducing the exercise price of the warrants from S1.75
to $1.05 and extending the life of the warrants by one year. The amendment to the terms of the warrants was reflected as

an increase of $8.6 million in the value of warrants recorded on the consolidated balance sheet and expensed as liquidated

damages in the results of operations.

Loss (Gain) from Derivative Financial Instruments

{thousands of U.S. dollars)

zed financial derivative loss

Unrealized financial derivative (gain) loss

ative {gain) foss

1 of unrealized financial derivativ

Cu

Long-term portion of unrealized financial derivative

Jnrealized financial derivative

In accordance with the terms of the credit facility with Standard Bank Plc, in February 2007 we entered into a costless collar
financial derivative contract for crude oil based on WTI price, with a floor of $48.00 and a ceiling of $80.00, forat
period, for 400 barrels per day from March 2007 to December 2007, 300 barrels per day from January 2008 to December 2008,
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and 200 barrels per day from January 2009 to February 2010.
For the year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded a gain of $0.2 million due to the significant decrease in WTI crude ol

price experienced in the second half of 2008. for the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded a loss of $3.0 million due to
the significant increase in WTi crude oil price experienced throughout 2007.
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Foreign Exchange Loss (Gain)

The foreign exchange loss (gain) resuits from the translation of foreign currency denominated transactions to U.S. dellars.

Capital Program-—Corporate

The 2008 capital expenditures of $3.3 million for the Corporate Segment included expenditures of $2.8 miliion for Peru on
our Exploration Blocks 122 and 128. Acquisition of technical data through aeromagnetic-gravity studies began in 2007, and
was completed in the first half of 2008, with a total of 20,000 kilometers of data acquired over both blocks. In 2008, we
started Environmental Impact Assessments and the community consultation process on both blocks. These projects will be
completed in 2009, along with drilling feasibility and geological studies.

In 2007, capital expenditures of $o.7 million were primarily refated to Peru and included technical studies of Block 122
and Block 128 and the initiation of an aeromagnetic-gravity survey over both blocks. This program commenced in the fourth
quarter of 2007 and was completed in 2008.

We acquired Block 122 and Block 128 in the fourth quarter of 2006, and expenditures in Peru were minimal in 2006,

Fourth Quarter Results

The following table provides an analysis of quarterly financial information (in thousands of dollars except per share
amounts) for the three months ended December 31, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007:

i

Selected Quarterly Financial information

Revenue and Other Income

Expenses 11,529
income {Loss) before tncome Tax 4,443
Income Tax Expense 2,281

Net Income (Loss)

o

Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share

For the three months ended December 31, 2008, Gran Tierra Energy recorded a loss of $12.7 million (50.07 per share) compared
to net income of $2.2 million (S0.02 per share) recorded in the same period last year. The fourth quarter results were
adversely affected by the sharp decline of crude oil prices, temporary suspension of production in two major producing
fields in Colombia, and the consolidation of Solana expenses effective Novemnber 14, 2008 including the amortization of the
purchase price adjustment recorded for the fair value of the Solana assets and a foreign exchange loss of $8.1 million mainly
resulting from the translation of a deferred tax liability recognized on the purchase of Solana. Furthermore, incremental
revenues contributed by Solana were marginal due to the suspension of the production in the fields which represent
Solana’s major producing properties.

Production of crude oil increased by 72% to 4,074 barrels per day from 2,371 barrels per day in the last quarter of 2007.
The positive effect of this increase in production was offset by the sharp decline in crude oil prices. Average prices per barrel
of oil declined by 31% to $50.49 from $72.93 realized in the same quarter last year. The fourth quarter production levels in
2008 were also adversely impacted by the temporary suspension of production operations in the Costayaco and juanambu
oil fields on November 24, 2008. This was as a result of a declaration of a state of emergency and force majeure by Ecopetrol,
due to a general strike in the Putumayo region where our Costayaco field and our Guayuyaco and Santana producing blocks
are located. On January 12, 2009, crude oil transportation resumed in southern Colombia as a result of the ifting of the strike
at the Orito facilities operated by Ecopetrol. The suspension also negatively affected the expected incremental contribution
of production from Solana's interest in the Costayaco field.

The increase in expenses between the two quarters was associated with the expanded activities of Gran Tierra Energy as
well as the additional Solana expenses recorded subsequent to the acquisition of Solana on November 14, 2008. During the
shutdown, we incurred costs of maintaining and servicing the facilities acquired from Solana. DD&A expense between the
two quarters also increased significantly due to higher production levels and the increased depletion base resulting from
recording the fair values of property, plant and equipment acquired from Solana.



Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2008, we had cash and cash equivalents of $176.8 million compared to $18.2 million at December 31,

2007 and $24.1 million at December 31, 2006. We believe that our cash position together with our positive cash flow from
operations and access to unutilized credit facilities with a borrowing base of $33 million and no debt will provide us with
sufficient liquidity to meet our strategic objectives and fund our planned capital program over the course of 2009 and in the
near future. In accordance with Gran Tierra Energy’s investment policy, cash balances are invested only in United States or
Canadian government backed federal, provincial or state securities with the highest credit ratings and short-term liquidity.

Effective February 22, 2007, we entered into a revolving credit facility with Standard Bank Plc. The facility has a three-year
term which may be extended by agreement between the parties. The borrowing base is the present value of our petroleum
reserves of our subsidiary, Gran Tierra Energy Colombia Ltd., up to maximum of $50 million. The initial borrowing base was
$7 million based on mid-2006 reserves and it can be re-determined semi-annuaily based on reserve evaluation reports. As a
result of Standard Bank Plc’s review of our mid-year 2007 independent reserve audit, we have received preliminary approval
to increase our borrowing base to $20 million; however, we have not pursued this further as the additional credit is not
required at this time. The facility includes a letter of credit sub-limit of up to $5 million. Amounts drawn down under the
facility bear interest at the Eurodollar rate plus 4%. A stand-by fee of 1% per annum is charged on the undrawn amount
of the borrowing base. The facility is secured primarily by the assets of our subsidiary, Gran Tierra Energy Colombia Ltd.
Under the terms of the facility, we are required to maintain compliance with specified financial and operating covenants.

As at December 31, 2008, Gran Tierra Energy was in full compliance with these terms and conditions. We were required to
enter into a derivative instrument for the purpose of obtaining protection against fluctuations in the price of oil in respect
of at least 50% of the aggregate net share of Colombian production after royalties for the three-year term of the facility as
projected by the September 30, 2006 Independent Reserve Evaluation Report. As of December 31, 2008, no amounts have
been drawn-down under this facility.

We acquired Solana, effective November 14, 2008, which has a credit facility with BNP Paribas. The facility has a maturity
date of December 20, 2010 and may be extended by agreement between the parties. The borrowing base is currently $26 million,
based on the current value of our petroleum reserves of our subsidiary, Solana Petroleum Exploration (Colombia) Ltd., up to a
maximum of $100 million. The facility includes a letter of credit sublimit of up to $5 million. Amounts drawn down under the
facility bear interest at the Eurodollar rate plus a margin for each quarter dependent on production for the previous quarter as
follows: 3.125% for production less than 1,500 barrels of oil per day; 2.875% for production between 1,500 and 3,000 barrels of
oil per day; 2.625% for production between 3,000 and 5,000 barrels of oil per day; and 2.375% for production over 5,000 barrels
of oil per day. The facility is secured primarily by the assets of Solana Petroleum Exploration (Colombia) Ltd. Under the terms of
the facility, we are required to maintain compliance with specified financial and operating covenants. As of December 31, 2008,
no amounts have been drawn-down under this facility.

Both Standard Bank Plc and BNP Paribas have provided consent letters with regard to our acquisition of Solana. The
letters of consent provided by the banks each contain a number of conditions which effectively limit the time period of the
consent to 150 days from the acquisition date of November 14, 2008. We are currently working with both banks to determine
the appropriate facility going forward.

The following provides an analysis of our cash in-flows and out-flows during the three-year period ended December 31, 2008:

Cash Flows during the Year Ended December 31, 2008

During the year ended December 31, 2008, our cash and cash equivalents increased by $158.6 million due to positive
cash inflows from operations of $109.7 million, from investing activities of $27.1 million and from financing activities of
$21.7 million. Net cash provided by operating activities was positively affected by the significant increases in crude oil
production and prices as well as collection of receivables assumed as part of the Solana acquisition and an increase in
current income taxes payable related to Gran Tierra Energy’s taxable position in Colombia.

Cash inflows from investing activities include $81.9 million assumned on the purchase of Solana, net of acquisition costs,
offset by $55.2 million in capital expenditures related to our exploration and development and other oilfield related activities,
net of the change in non-cash working capital. Cash inflows from financing activities of $21.7 million related to the proceeds
from the exercise of warrants and stock options.
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Cash Flows during the Year Ended December 31, 2007

During the year ended December 31, 2007, our cash and cash equivalents declined by $5.9 million as a positive cash
contribution from operations of $8.8 million was more than offset by funds of $16.0 million (net of changes in non-cash
working capital related to capital expenditures) expended in our capital expenditure program relating to our drilling
and other oilfield activities primarily in Colombia. Also, the restricted funds of $1.0 million related to the 2006 escrow
agreement were released to our treasury.

Cash Flows during the Year Ended December 31, 2006

During the year ended December 31, 2006, our cash and cash equivalents increased by $21.9 million to $24.1 million.

A positive contribution from operations of $2.0 million, coupled with $68.1 million raised through financing activities,
was partially utilized for investing activities of $48.3 million.

The investing activities comprised $36.9 million related to the purchase of Argosy and $10.3 million (net of changes
in non-cash working capital related to capital expenditures) used for our capital expenditure program relating to drilling
activities in Colombia, the purchase and development of properties in Argentina, and office equipment and leasehold
improvements in both Calgary and Argentina.

Our financing activities comprised proceeds from a series of private placements of securities including $75.0 million,
fess issue costs of $6.3 million, from the sale of 50 million units of our securities at a price of $1.50 per unit pursuant to four
separate Securities Purchase Agreements in june 2006 (*2006 Offering”), $0.6 million from the sale of 762,500 units of our
securities in the first quarter of 2006, and proceeds from the exercise of warrants to purchase common stock. However, of
the amount raised under the 2006 Offering, $1.3 million was held in escrow at December 31, 2006, and the holders of those
units had the right to return the units to us and receive their purchase price back under the terms of the escrow agreement
because we were unable to obtain a securities laws exemption for those holders by a specified date. Each unit of securities
issued under the 2006 Offering comprised one share of Gran Tierra Energy’s common stock and one warrant to purchase
one-half of a share of Gran Tierra Energy’s common stock at an exercise price of $1.75 for period of five years. In connection
with the issuance of these securities, Gran Tierra Energy entered into four separate Registration Rights Agreements with
the investors pursuant to which Gran Tierra Energy agreed to register for resale the shares and warrants {and shares issuable
pursuant to the warrants) issued to the investors in the offering by November 17, 2006, and if we failed to do so, we would
be obligated to pay liquidated damages. For a further discussion of liquidated damages, reference should be made to the
discussion and analysis appearing under the caption “Segmented Results of Operations—Corporate” appearing on page 65 of
this Report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

Gran Tierra Energy holds three categories of operating leases, namely office, vehicle and housing. We pay monthly costs of
$141,998 for office leases, $15,338 for vehicle leases, $9,400 for a compressor and $5,567 for certain employee accommodation
leases in Colombia.

Future lease payments and other contractual obtigations at December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Contractual Obligations Less than 1103 3t05 More than
(thousands of U.S. dollars) Total 1Year years years 5 years
Operating leases S 5,126 S 1.754 $ 2,720 S 609 S 43
Drilling and completion services S 1,104 1,104 - - -
Total S 6,230 S 2,858 S 2,720 S 609 S 43
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Related Party Transactions

In connection with the Solana acquisition, we acquired additional office space of 4,441 square feet used by Solana as its
headquarters in Calgary. The lease payments under the lease are $8,975 per month, and operating and other expenses are
approximately $4,000 per month. The lease expires on April 30, 2014. On February 1, 2009, we entered into a sublease for that
office space with a company, of which two of Gran Tierra Energy’s directors are shareholders and directors. The term of the
sublease runs from February 1, 2009 to August 31, 2011, and the sublease payment is $7,050 per month plus approximately
$4,000 for operating and other expenses. The terms of the sublease are consistent with current market conditions in the
Calgary real estate market.

Outlook

Business Environment

Our revenues have been negatively impacted by the recent decline in crude oil prices. Crude oil prices are volatile and
unpredictable and are influenced by concerns about financial markets and the expected adverse impact of the slowing
worldwide economy on oil demand growth. However, based on projected production, prices, costs and our current liquidity
position, we believe that our current operations and capital expenditure program can be maintained from cash flow from
existing operations, cash on hand, and our credit facilities, barring unforeseen events or a further severe downturn in oil and
gas prices. Should our operating cash flow decline, we would examine measures such as reducing our capital expenditure
program, issuance of debt, or issuance of equity.

The credit markets, including the commercial paper markets in the United States, have recently experienced adverse
conditions. Although we have not been materially impacted by these conditions, continuing volatility in the credit markets
may increase costs associated with renewing or increasing our credit facilities, or affect our, or third parties we seek to do
business with, ability to access those markets.

Our future growth and acquisitions may depend on our ability to raise additional funds through equity and debt markets.
Increases in the borrowing base under our credit facilities are dependent on our success in increasing oil and gas reserves
and on future oil prices. Additional funds will be provided to us if holders of our warrants to purchase common shares
decide to exercise the warrants. Should we be required to raise debt or equity financing to fund capital expenditures or other
acquisition arnd development opportunities, such funding may be affected by the market value of our common stock. if the
price of our common stock declines, our ability to utilize our stock to raise capital may be negatively affected. Also. raising
funds by issuing stock or other equity securities would further dilute our existing stockholders, and this dilution would be
exacerbated by a decline in our stock price. Any securities we issue may have rights, preferences and privileges that are senior
to our existing equity securities. Borrowing money may also involve further pledging of some or all of our assets that are not
currently pledged under our existing credit facilities.

2009 Work Program and Capital Expenditure Program

Gran Tierra Energy’s 2009 work program is intended to create both growth and value in our existing assets through
increasing our reserves and production, while retaining the financial flexibility, with a strong cash position and no debt, to
pursue acquisition opportunities.

We are seeking to grow production to approximately 20,000 barrels of oil per day, net after rayalty, in the second half of
2009, with 19,000 barrels from Colombia and 1,000 barrels from Argentina.

We anticipate the existing pipeline system connecting the Costayaco field to the Orito gathering facilities can
accommodate an estimated 15,000 barrels of oil per day gross production from the Costayaco field with new pumps, in
addition to crude oil from the other existing producing fields. Trucking capacity can handle an additional 10,000 barrels of
oil per day capacity from the Costayaco field. This would accommodate a growth in 2009 production from Costayaco to an
estimated 25,000 barrels of oil per day gross in the second half of 2009.

Gran Tierra Energy has planned a 2009 capital spending program of $198 million for exploration and development
activities in Colombia, Peru, and Argentina. Planned capital expenditures in Colombia are $178 million, $10 million in Peru,
and $10 million in Argentina.

We expect that our committed and discretionary 2009 capital program can be funded from cash flow from operations if
WTI oil price averages above $61 per barrel of oil for 2009. If WTI oil price averages between $22 per barrel and $61 per barrel
for 2009, we expect to be able to fund these programs from cash flow from operations plus available cash balances.
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We will continue to monitor our capital spending during 2009. We have the flexibility to defer or cancel portions of our
capital program in response to a drop in WTi from the current levels of approximately $36 to $45 per barrel of oil.

Outlook—Colombia
The bulk of 2009 capital spending in Colombia is scheduled to be dedicated to further developing the Costayaco field in
the Chaza block. Four additional development wells are planned, Costayaco-7 through 10. In addition, one water injector
well is scheduled to be drilled and three existing well workovers undertaken. New infrastructure construction is planned to
continue, including support facilities, crude oil gathering lines, water lines, two pumping stations and storage batteries.
In addition to the ongoing Costayaco field development activities, we plan to carry out an active exploration and
development program on our other blocks in Cofombia, including:

+  Drilling a development well, Juanambu-2, in the Guayuyaco block.

+ Drilling one exploration well in each of the Chaza, Azar, Mecaya, Rio Magdalena, San Pablo and Catguas blocks.

* Acquiring up to 665 kilometers of seismic.

*  Long-term production tests on the Palmera-1 heavy oil discovery in the Azar block and the Popa-2 gas-condensate

discovery in the Rio Magdalena block.
« Upgrades to facilities.

During 2009, we expect portions of the Putumayo West A Technical Evaluation Area to be converted to one or more ANH
exploration contracts with new seismic acquisition program commitments in 2009. In addition, we expect a portion of the
Putumayo West B Technical Evaluation Area to be converted to an exploration license, also with a new seismic acquisition
program commitment for 2009.

Outlook—Argentina
Gran Tierra Energy’s planned work program for 2009 consists of conducting nine workovers of existing producing wells,
facilities upgrades, and 162 km? of 3D seismic acquisition in the Chivil and Surubi Blocks.

Outlook—Peru

We have entered the second exploration period of both Blocks 122 and 128 on the eastern flank of the Marafion Basin

of northern Peru. We have identified 24 leads based on interpretation of a 20,000 linear kilometer airborne gravity and
magnetic survey completed over the blocks in 2008. An environmental impact survey is currently being undertaken in
preparation for a 500 kilometer 2D seismic survey expected to be acquired in the fourth quarter of 2009 and into the first
quarter of 2010 over the principal leads identified on the two blocks. We expect exploration drilling to take place in the
second half of 2010. In addition, a pre-feasibility engineering field development study is scheduled to be undertaken during
2009 to assist with early planning in the event a commercial discovery is made in 2010.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements under generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) in the United States
requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

The critical accounting policies used by management in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements are
those that are important both to the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations and require significant
judgments by management with regards to estimates used. We believe that the assumptions, judgments and estimates
involved in the accounting for oil and gas accounting and reserves determination, establishment of fair values of assets and
liabilities acquired as part of acquisitions, impairment, asset retirement obligations, goodwill impairment, deferred income
taxes, share-based payment arrangements, and warrants have the greatest potential impact on our consolidated financial
statements. These areas are key components of our results of operations and are based on complex rules which require us to
make judgments and estimates, so we consider these to be our critical accounting estimates. Our critical accounting policies
and significant judgments and estimates related to those policies are discussed below.

Actual results could differ from these estimates, however, historically, our assumptions, judgments and estimates
relative to our critical accounting estimates have not differed materially from actual results.
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On a regular basis, we evaluate our assumptions, judgments and estimates. We also discuss our critical accounting
policies and eszimates with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

0il and Gas Accounting Reserves Determination
We follow the full cost method of accounting for our investment in oil and natural gas properties, as defined by the SEC, as
described in note 2 to our annual consolidated financial statements. Full cost accounting depends on the estimated reserves
we believe are recoverable from our oil and gas reserves. The process of estimating reserves is complex. It requires significant
judgments and decisions based on available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data.

To estimate the economically recoverable oit and natural gas reserves and related future net cash flows, we incorporate
many factors and assumptions including:

. Expected reservoir characteristics based on geological, geophysical and engineering assessments

- Future production rates based on historical performance and expected future operating and

investment activities

- Future oil and gas quality differentials

. Assumed effects of regulation by governmental agencies

«  Future development and operating costs

We believe our assumptions are reasonable based on the information available to us at the time we prepare our
estimates. However, these estimates may change substantially as additional data from ongoing development activities and
production performance becomes available and as economic conditions impacting oil and gas prices and costs change.

Management is responsible for estimating the quantities of proved oil and natural gas reserves and for preparing related
disclosures. Estimates and related disclosures are prepared in accordance with SEC requirements and generally accepted
industry practices in the United States as prescribed by the Society of Petroleum Engineers. Reserve estimates are audited at
least annually by independent qualified reserves consultants.

Our Board of Directors oversees the annual review of our oil and gas reserves and related disclosures. The Board
meets with management periodically to review the reserves process, results and related disclosures, and appoints and
meets with the independent reserves consultants to review the scope of their work, whether they have had access to
sufficient information, the nature and satisfactory resolution of any material differences of opinion, and in the case of the
independent reserves consultants, their independence.

Reserves estimates are critical to many of our accounting estimates, including:
. Determining whether or not an exploratory well has found economically producible reserves
. Calculzting our unit-of-production depletion rates. Proved reserves estimates are used to determine rates that
are applied to each unit-of-production in calculating our depletion expense.
« Assessing, when necessary, our oil and gas assets for impairment. Estimated future cash flows are determined
using proved reserves. The critical estimates used 10 assess impairment, including the impact of changes in
reserves estimates, are discussed below.

0il and Gas Accounting and Impairment

The accounting for and disclosure of oil and gas producing activities requires that we choose between GAAP alternatives.
We use the full cost method of accounting for our oil and natural gas operations. Under this method, separate cost centers
are maintained for each country in which we incur costs. All costs incurred in the acquisition, exploration and development
of properties (including costs of surrendered and abandoned leaseholds, delay lease rentals, dry holes and overhead

related to exploration and development activities) are capitalized. The sum of net capitalized costs and estimated future
development costs of oil and natural gas properties for each full cost center are depleted using the units-of-production
method. Changes in estimates of proved reserves, future development costs or asset retirement obligations are accounted
for prospectively in our depletion calculation.

Investments in unproved properties are not depleted pending the determination of the existence of proved reserves.
Unproved properties are assessed periodically to ascertain whether impairment has occurred. Unproved properties, the costs
of which are individually significant, are assessed individually by considering the primary lease terms of the properties,
the holding period of the properties, and geographic and geologic data obtained relating to the properties. Where it is not
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practicable to individually assess the amount of impairment of properties for which costs are not individually significant,
these properties are grouped for purposes of assessing impairment. The amount of impairment assessed is added to the
costs to be amortized in the appropriate full cost pool.

Companies that use the full cost method of accounting for oil and natural gas exploration and development activities
are required to perform a ceiling test calculation each quarter on a country-by-country basis. The ceiling limits these
pooled costs to the aggregate of the after-tax, present value, discounted at 10%, of future cash flows attributable to
proved reserves, known as the standardized measure, plus the lower of cost or market value of unproved properties less
any associated tax effects. Cash flow estimates for our impairment assessments require assumptions about two primary
elements: constant prices and reserves. It is difficult to determine and assess the impact of a decrease in our proved
reserves on our impairment tests. The relationship between the reserves estimate and the estimated discounted cash
flows is complex because of the necessary assumptions that need to be made regarding period end production rates,
period end prices and costs. If these capitalized costs exceed the ceiling, we will record a write-down to the extent of such
excess as a non-cash charge to earnings. Any such write-down will reduce earnings in the period of occurrence and result
in lower DD&A expense in future periods. A write-down may not be reversed in future periods, even though higher oil
and natural gas prices may subsequently increase the ceiling. Due to the complexity of the calculation, we are unable to
provide a reasonable sensitivity analysis of the impact that a reserves estimate decrease would have on our assessment
of impairment. A reduction in oil and natural gas prices and/or estimated quantities of oil and natural gas reserves would
reduce the ceiling limitation and could result in a ceiling test write-down.

We assessed our oil and gas properties for impairment as at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 and found no impairment
write-downs were required based on our assumptions. Estimates of standardized measure of our future cash flows from
proved reserves were based on realized crude oil prices of $44.60 in Colombia and $40 for oil production from the Surubi
block in Argentina and $33 for production from all other blocks in Argentina as at December 31, 2008.

The acquisition of Solana, effective November 14, 2008, was accounted for using the purchase method, with Gran Tierra
Energy being the acquirer, whereby the Solana assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their fair values
at the acquisition date with the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of the tangible and intangible net assets
acquired recorded as goodwill. Calculation of fair values of assets and liabilities, which was done by independent advisors,
is subject to estimates which include various assumptions including the extent of proved and unproved reserves of the
acquired company as well as the future production and development costs and the future oil and gas prices.

While these estimates of fair value for the various assets acquired and liabilities assumed have no effect on our liquidity
or capital resources, they can have an effect on the future results of operations. Generally, the higher the fair value assigned
to both oil and gas properties and non-oil and gas properties, the lower future net income will be as a result of higher future
depreciation, depletion and accretion expense. Also, a higher fair value assigned to the oil and gas properties, based on
higher future estimates of oil and gas prices, will increase the likelihood of a full cost ceiling write down in the event that
subsequent oil and gas prices drop below our price forecast that was used to originally determine fair value.

Asset Retirement Obligations

We are required to remove or remedy the effect of our activities on the environment at our present and former operating
sites by dismantling and removing production facilities and remediating any damage caused. Estimating our future asset
retirement obligations requires us to make estimates and judgments with respect to activities that will occur many years
into the future. In addition, the ultimate financial impact of environmental laws and regulations is not always clearly known
and cannot be reasonably estimated as standards evolve in the countries in which we operate.

We record asset retirement obligations in our consolidated financial statements by discounting the present value of
the estimated retirement obligations associated with our oil and gas wells and facilities. In arriving at amounts recorded,
we make numerous assumptions and judgments with respect to ultimate settlement amounts, inflation factors, credit
adjusted discount rates, timing of settlement and expected changes in legal, regulatory, environmental and political
environments. The asset retirement obligations result in an increase to the carrying cost of our property, plant and
equipment. The obligations are accreted with the passage of time. A change in any one of our assumptions could impact
our asset retirement obligations, our property, plant and equipment and our net income.

It is difficult to determine the impact of a change in any one of our assumptions. As a result, we are unable to provide a
reasonable sensitivity analysis of the impact a change in our assumptions would have on our financial results.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price of business combinations over the fair value of net assets acquired and we
test for impairment at least annually. The impairment test requires allocating goodwill and all other assets and liabilities
to reporting units. We estimate the fair value of each reporting unit and compare it to the net book value of the reporting
unit. If the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is less than the net book value, including goodwill, we write down

the goodwill to the implied fair value of the goodwill through a charge to expense. Because quoted market prices are not
available for our reporting units, we estimate the fair values of the reporting units based upon estimated future cash flows
of the reporting unit. The goodwill on our financial statements was a result of the Solana and Argosy acquisitions, and
relates entirely to the Colombia reporting segment.

Deferred Income Taxes

We follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes whereby we recognize deferred income tax assets and
liabilities based on temporary differences in reported amounts for financial statement and tax purposes. We carry on
business in several countries and as a result, we are subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. The determination
of our income tax provision is inherently complex and we are required to interpret continually changing regulations and
make certain judgments. While income tax filings are subject to audits and reassessments, we believe we have made
adequate provision for all income tax obligations. However, changes in facts and circumstances as a result of income tax
audits, reassessments, jurisprudence and any new legislation may result in an increase or decrease in our provision for
income taxes.

To assess the realization of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.
We consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies
in making this assessment.

Share-Based Payment Arrangements

We record share-based payment arrangements in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123 (Revised), “Share-Based Payment”, which requires the
measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and
directors including employee stock options based on estimated fair values.

SFAS 123R requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an
option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over
the requisite service periods in our Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Under SFAS 123R, share-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion
of share-based payment awards that is ultimately expected to vest during the period. Compensation expense is recognized
using the accelerated method. As share-based compensation expense recognized in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. SFAS 123R requires
forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ
from those estimates.

Under SFAS 123R, we utilized a Black-Scholes option pricing model to measure the fair value of stock options granted to
employees. Our determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing
madel is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables.
These variables include, but are not limited to, our expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, and actual and
projected employee stock option exercise behaviors.

Option-pricing models were developed for use in estimating the value of traded options that have no vesting or
hedging restrictions and are fully transferable. Because (1) our employee stock options have certain characteristics that
are significantly different from traded options, and (2) changes in the subjective assumptions can materially affect the
estimated value, in management’s opinion, the existing valuation models may not provide an accurate measure of the fair
value of our employee stock options. Although the fair value of employee stock options is determined in accordance with
SFAS No. 123R, using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model, that value may not be indicative of the fair value observed in a
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willing buyer/willing seller market transaction. We are responsible for determining the assumptions used in estimating the
fair value of its share-based payment awards.

Warrants

We follow the fair-value method of accounting for warrants issued to purchase our common stock. The change of

$8.6 million in the fair value of warrants issued in the 2006 Offering, arising from the amendment to the terms of the
warrants in connection with the settlement of the liability for liquidated damages, was determined using a Black-Scholes
warrant pricing model based on a 25% volatility rate, which reflects a typical volatility rate used to value this type of
financial instrument.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value under U.S. GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position (“FSP") SFAS 157-2 which delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities,
except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually),
until fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. These non-financial items
include assets and liabilities such as reporting units measured at fair value in a goodwill impairment test, asset retirement
obligations and non-financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. In October 2008, the FASB
also issued FSP SFAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active,”
which clarifies the application of SFAS 157 in an inactive market and illustrates how an entity would determine fair value
when the market for a financial asset is not active. Effective January 1, 2008, Gran Tierra Energy adopted SFAS 157 for financial
assets and liabilities. The partial adoption of SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities did not have a material impact on
Gran Tierra Energy’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Beginning January 1, 2009, Gran
Tierra Energy will adopt the provisions for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities that are not required or permitted
to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis, which include those measured at fair value in goodwill impairment
testing, indefinite-lived intangible assets measured at fair value for impairment assessment, non-financial long-lived assets
measured at fair value for impairment assessment, asset retirement obligations initially measured at fair value, and those
initially measured at fair value in a business combination. Gran Tierra Energy does not expect the provisions of SFAS 157
related to these items to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”.
SFAS 159 permits an entity to elect fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement attribute for many financial assets
and liabilities. Entities electing the fair value option would be required to recognize changes in fair value in earnings.
Entities electing the fair value option are required to distinguish, on the face of the consolidated balance sheet, the fair
value of assets and liabilities for which the fair value option has been elected and similar assets and liabilities measured
using another measurement attribute. The adoption of SFAS 159 on January 1, 2008 did not impact Gran Tierra Energy’s
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (R), “Business Combinations”, and SFAS No. 160, “Non-controlling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements”™. SFAS 141 (R) requires an acquirer to measure the identifiable assets acquired,
the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at their fair values on the acquisition date, with
goodwill being the excess value over the net identifiable assets acquired. SFAS 160 clarifies that a non-controlling interest
in a subsidiary should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements. The calculation of earnings per share
will continue to be based on income amounts attributable to the parent. SFAS 141 (R} and SFAS 160 are effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Early adoption is prohibited and the provisions are
applied prospectively. The adoption of these statements is not expected to have a material effect on Gran Tierra Energy’s
consolidated financial statements but these changes may affect potential future business combinations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. SFAS 161
requires companies with derivative instruments to disclose information that should enable financial statement users to
understand how and why a company uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items
are accounted for under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and how derivative
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instruments and related hedged items affect a company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS 161 is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The adoption
of this statement is not expected to have a material effect on Gran Tierra Energy’s consolidated financial statements.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets™ FSP142-3 amends the
factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. FSP 142-3 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Early adoption is prohibited. The adoption of this
statement is not expected to have a material impact on Gran Tierra Energy’s consolidated financial statements.

in May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”. SFAS 162
identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles to be used in the preparation
of financial statements of non-governmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States. It is effective 60 days following the SEC’s approval of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles”. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material effect Gran Tierra Energy’s
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 07-05, “Determining Whether an Instrument (or Embedded
Feature) Is Indexed to an Entity’s Own Stock”. EITF 07-05 clarifies the determination of whether an instrument (or an
embedded feature) is indexed to an entity’s own stock, which would qualify as a scope exception under SFAS 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. EITF 07-05 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. Early adoption for an existing instrument is not permitted. The adoption of this EITF is
not expected to have a material effect on Gran Tierra Energy’s consolidated financial statements.

In Decemoer 2008, the SEC released Final Rule, Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting to revise the existing
Regulation S-K and Regulation S-X reporting requirements to align with current industry practices and technological
advances. The new disclosure requirements include provisions that permit the use of new technologies to determine
proved reserves if those technologies have been demonstrated empirically to lead to reliable conclusions about reserve
volumes. In addition, the new disclosure requirements require a company to {a) disclose its internal control over reserves
estimation and report the independence and qualification of its reserves preparer or auditor, (b) file reports when a third-
party is relied upon to prepare reserves estimates or conducts a reserve audit and (c) report oil and gas reserves using
an average price based upon the prior 12-month period rather than period-end prices. The provisions of this final ruling
is effective for disclosures in Gran Tierra Energy’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.
Early adoption is not permitted. Gran Tierra Energy is currently assessing the impact that the adoption will have on the
Company’s disclosures, operating results, financial position and cash flows.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

our principal market risk refates to oil prices. We have not hedged these risks in the past. Essentially 100% of our revenues
are from oil sales at prices which are defined by contract relative to West Texas Intermediate and adjusted for transportation
and quality for each month. In Argentina, a further discount factor which is related to a tax on oil exports establishes a
common pricing mechanism for all oil produced in the country, regardless of its destination.

In accordance with the terms of the credit facility with Standard Bank Plc, which we entered into on February 28, 2007,
we entered into a costless collar financial derivative contract for crude oil based on West Texas Intermediate (“WTI") price, with
a floor of $48.00 and a ceiling of $80.00, for a three-year period, for 400 barrels per day from March 2007 to December 2007,
300 barrels per day from January 2008 to December 2008, and 200 barrels per day from January 2009 to February 2010.

At December 31, 2008, the value of this costless collar was $233,000 . A hypothetical 10% increase in WTI price on December 31,
2008 would cause the value to decrease by approximately $229,000, and a hypothetical 10% decrease in WTI price on
December 31. 2008 would cause the value to increase by approximately $345,000.

We consider our exposure to interest rate risk to be immaterial. Interest rate exposures relate entirely to our investment
portfolio, as we do not have short-term or long-term debt. However, if we draw down amounts under our credit facilities
with Standard Bank Plc or 8NP Paribas, we will incur interest rate risk with respect to the amounts drawn down and
outstanding. Our investment objectives are focused on preservation of principal and liquidity. By policy, we manage our
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exposure to market risks by limiting investments to high quality bank issuers at overnight rates, or government securities of
the United States or Canadian federal governments such as Guaranteed Investment Certificates or Treasury Bills. We do not
hold any of these investments for trading purposes. We do not hold equity investments.

Foreign currency risk is a factor for our Company but is ameliorated to a large degree by the nature of expenditures and
revenues in the countries where we operate. We have not engaged in any formal hedging activity with regard to foreign
currency risk. Our reporting currency is U.S. dollars and essentially 100% of our revenues are related to the U.S. price of
West Texas intermediate oil. In Colombia, we receive 75% of oil revenues in U.S. dollars and 25% in Colombian pesos
at current exchange rates. The majority of our capital expenditures in Colombia are in U.S. dollars and the majority of
local office costs are in local currency. As a result, the 75%/25% allocation between U.S. dollar and peso denominated
revenues is approximately balanced between U.S. and peso expenditures, providing a natural currency hedge. In Argentina,
reference prices for oil are in U.S. dollars and revenues are received in Argentine pesos according to current exchange
rates. The majority of capital expenditures within Argentina have been in U.S. dollars with local office costs generally in
pesos. While we operate in South America exclusively, the majority of our spending since our inauguration has been for
acquisitions. The majority of these acquisition expenditures have been valued and paid in U.S. dollars.
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Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Chartered Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Gran Tierra Energy Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Gran Tierra Energy Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”)
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations and retained earnings (accumulated
deficit), shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Gran Tierra Energy Inc. and subsidiaries as at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as at December 31, 2008, based on the criteria established
in internal Control—integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commissior and our report dated February 24, 2009, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada

February 24, 2009
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Consolidated Statements of Operations and Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit)

For the Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 Year Ended December 31,
(thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share amounts) 2007 2006
REVEN ND OTHER INCOME
Oit and natural gas sales S 31,853 S 11.721
Interest 425 352
32,278 12.073
Operating 10,474 4,233
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 9,415 4,088
General and administrative 10,232 6.999
Liquidated damages (Note 6) 7,367 1,528
Derivative financial instruments (gain] loss (Note 11} 3,040 -
Foreign exchange (gain) loss (78) 371

40,450

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES (8,172)
: Income taxes (Note 8) (295) (678)
NET INCOME (LOSS) AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS) (8,467) ' (5.824)
i ACCUMULATED DEFICIT, BEGINNING OF YEAR (8,044) (2,220)
RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED DEFIC S (16,511} S (8.044)
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE — BASIC $ (0.09) S (0.08)
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE —DILUTED S (0.09) S (0.08)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING—BASIC (Note 6) 95,096.311 72,443,501
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING—DILUTED (Note 6) 95,096,311 72,443,501

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

As at December 31, 2008 and 2007

(thousands of U.S. dolars)

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts recelvable

Inventory

Derivative financial instruments (Note 1)

Deferred tax asset (Note 8)

Total Current Assets

Oil and Gas Properties (using the full cost method of accounting)
Proved

Unproved

Total Oif and Gas Properties
Other Assets

44,292
18,910

Total Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 5)

202
716

(S

Long-Term Ass
Deferred tax asset (Note 8)
Taxes receivable
Other long-term assets

Goodwill (Note 3)

63.918

Total Long-Term Assets

1,839
525

CHLDERS

p=

ccounts payable (Note g)

ed liabilities (Note 9)
Derivative financial instruments (Note 11)

ayable

Deferred tax Hability (Note 8)

tal Current Liabilities

Long-term liabilities
y {(Note 8)

nittance tax {(Note 8)

Deferred tax lia

Deferred

Derivative financial instruments {Note 1)

Asset retiremnent obligation {Note 7)

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10)

Subsequent fvents (No

Shareholders” Equity

Common shares (Not

190,248,384 and 80,389,676 common shares and 48,233,269 and 14,787,303 exchangeable
ember 31, 2008 and

shares, par value $0.001 per share, issued and outstanding
2007, respectively)

Additionat paid-in capital
Warrants

Retained earnings {accumulated deficit)
g5 1 )

at Dec

hareholders” Equity

o
U

8 Y SEEIa 157

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

For the Years ended Decermnber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Gran Tierra Energy Annual Report 2008

Year Ended Decemnber 31,

RS

Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depletion, depreciation and accretion
Deferred taxes
Stock-based compensation
Liquidated damages
Untealized foreign exchange loss
Unrealized (gain) loss on financial instruments
Net changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaids
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Taxes receivable and payable
settlement of asset retirement obligations (Note 7)

Net cash provided by operating activities

Vit
iy

Restricted cash
Oit and gas property expenditures
Cash acquired on acquisition net of acquisition costs (Note 3)

Long-term assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
F &

Restricted cash

Proceeds from issuance of cormmon stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net {decrease) increase in cash and cash squivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flow disciosures:
i
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for taxes

Non-cash investing activities:

Non-cash working capital related to capital additions

2007 2006
S (8.467) $ (5.824)
9,415 4,088
185 393
810 260
5,839 1.528

2,649
(5,604) (4,280)
25 (364)
234 (634)
2,807 6.639
869 (296)
5,762 2,010
(1.020)
{10.274)
- (36,912)
(427) -
(15,393) {48,206}
- {1,281)
719 69,357
719 68,076
(5,912) 21,880
24,101 2,221
S 18,189 S 24,101
S 18,189 S 24,101
5 18,189 S 24,101
S a0 S 104
5 116 S 741
5 8,259 ) 8,026

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

For the Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 Year Ended December 31,

{thousands of LS. dollars) 2007 2006
Balance, beginning of year S 95 5 43
Issue of common shares 1 52

{1

Cancelled common shares

Balance, end of year 95

Balance, beginning of year 71,311 1
Cancelled common shares (1,086)
issue of common shares 719 59,191
Issue of stock options in a business combination {Note 3)
Exercise of warrants 513 53
Exercise of stock options -
Stock-based compensation expense 1,001

Balance, end of year 72,458

Hs

Balance, beginning of year 12,832 1,408
Cancelied warrants [233)
Issue of warrants (Note 3) 8,625 11,477
Exe of warrants (474)

20,750

Balance, end of year

Net income {loss)

Balance end of year

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
(expressed in U.S. dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1. Description of Business

Gran Tierra Energy Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company” or “Gran Tierra Energy”) is a publicly traded oil and gas
company engaged in acquisition, exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas properties. The Company’s
principal business activities are in Colombia, Argentina and Peru.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America (“GAAP”). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
The Company believes that the information and disclosures presented are adequate to ensure the information presented is
not misleading.

Significant accounting policies are:
Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates and changes from those estimates are recorded when known. Oil and natural gas reserves and
related present value of future cash flows, impairment assessments, stock option expense, income taxes, asset retirement
obligation, derivative financial instrument valuation, legal and environmental risks and exposures and any assumptions
associated with valuation of oil and gas properties are all subject to estimation in the Company’s financial results.

Fareign currency translation

The functional currency of the Company, including its subsidiaries in Colombia, Argentina and Peru, is the United States
dollar. Monetary items are translated into the reporting currency at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date and
non-monetary items are translated at historical exchange rates. Revenue and expense items are translated in a manner that
produces substantially the same reporting currency amounts that would have resulted had the underlying transactions been
translated on the dates they occurred. Depreciation or amortization of assets is translated at the historical exchange rates
similar to the assets to which they relate.

Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions, which are transactions denominated in a currency other
than the entity’s functional currency, are included in the consolidated statement of operations and retained earnings
(accumulated deficit).

Fair value of financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and derivatives. The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying values due to their
immediate or short-term nature.
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Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Restricted cash

During the second quarter of 2007, investors holding 948,853 units exercised their right to have Gran Tierra Energy return

to them their purchase price for the securities held in escrow. Funds of $1.3 million, held in escrow by the Bank of America
were refunded to the investors in june 2007, and the securities were cancelled by the Company. No other investors have the
right to cause the Company to return their purchase price for securities. During the first quarter of 2007, the $1.0 million held
as a letter of credit for work commitments in Peru was returned to Gran Tierra Energy. Export Development Canada put a
guarantee in place on the Company’s behalf which resulted in the return of the restricted cash.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company estimates losses on receivables based on known uncollectible accounts, if any, and historical experience of
losses incurred. The allowance for doubtful receivables was $0.4 million and nil at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Inventory

Inventory consists of crude oil in tanks and supplies. Crude oil in tanks is valued at the lower of cost or market value.
Supplies are valued at cost. The cost of inventory is determined using the weighted average method. Crude oil inventories
include expenditures incurred to produce, upgrade and transport the product to the storage facilities. Crude oil inventories
at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were $0.8 million and $0.4 million, respectively. Supplies at Decamber 31, 2008 and 2007 were
$0.2 and $0.4 million, respectively.

Oil and gas properties

The Company uses the full cost method of accounting for its investment in oil and natural gas properties. Separate cost
centers are maintained for each country in which the Company incurs costs. Under this method, the Company capitalizes all
acquisition, exploration and development costs incurred for the purpose of finding oil and natural gas reserves, including
salaries, benefits and other internal costs directly attributable to these activities. Costs associated with production and
general corporate activities, however, are expensed in the period incurred. interest costs related to unproved properties

and properties under development are also capitalized to oil and natural gas properties. Unless a significant portion of

the Company’s proved reserve quantities in a particular country are sold (25% or greater), proceeds from the sale of oil and
natural gas properties are accounted for as a reduction to capitalized costs, and gains and losses are not recognized.

The Company computes depletion of oil and natural gas properties on a quarterly basis using the unit-of-production
method based upon production and estimates of proved reserve quantities. Unproved properties are excluded from the
amortizable base until evaluated. The cost of exploratory dry wells is transferred to proved properties and thus subject to
amortization immediately upon determination that a well is dry in those countries where proved reserves exist. Future
development costs are added to the amortizable base.

In countries where the Company has not recorded proved reserves, all costs associated with a property are considered
quarterly for impairment upon full evaluation of such prospect or play. This evaluation considers, among other factors,
seismic data, requirements to relinquish acreage, drilling results, remaining time in the commitment period, remaining
capital plans, and political, economic, and market conditions. in exploration areas, related geological and geophysical
(“G&G”) costs are capitalized in unproved property and evaluated as part of the total capitalized costs associated with a
property. G&G costs related to development projects are recorded in proved properties and therefore subject to amortization
as incurred.

The Company performs a ceiling test calculation each quarter in accordance with the Securities Exchange Commission
(*SEC™) Regulation S-X Rule 4-10. In performing its quarterly ceiling test, the Company limits, on a country-by-country basis,
the capitalized costs of proved oil and natural gas properties, net of accumulated depletion and deferred income taxes, to
the estimated future net cash flows from proved oif and natural gas reserves discounted at ten percent, net of related tax
effects, plus the lower of cost or fair value of unproved properties included in the costs being amortized. if capitalized costs
exceed this limit, the excess is charged as additional depletion expense. The Company calculates future net cash flows by
applying end-of-the-period prices except in those instances where future natural gas or oil sales are covered by physical
contract terms providing for higher or lower amounts.
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Unproved properties are assessed quarterly for possible impairments. If impairment has occurred, the impairment is
transferred to proved properties. For prospects where a reserve base has not yet been established, the impairment is charged
to earnings.

Asset retirement obligations

The Company provides for future asset retirement obligations on its oil and natural gas properties based on estimates
established by current legislation. The asset retirement obligation is initially measured at fair value and capitalized to capital
assets as an asset retirement cost. The asset retirement obligation accretes until the time the asset retirement obligation is
expected to settle while the asset retirement cost is amortized over the useful life of the underlying capital assets.

The amortization of the asset retirement cost and the accretion of the asset retirement obligation are included in
depletion, depreciation and accretion. Actual asset retirement costs are recorded against the obligation when incurred.
Any difference between the recorded asset retirement obligations and the actual retirement costs incurred is recorded as a
gain or loss in the period of settlement.

Other assets

Other assets, including additions and replacements, are recorded at cost upon acquisition and include furniture and fixtures,
computer equipment, automobiles and assets under capital leases. The cost of repairs and maintenance is charged to
expense as incurred. Depreciation related to assets under capital leases is recorded as part of depletion, depreciation and
accretion (“DD&A") in the consolidated statement of operations. Depreciation is provided using the declining-balance-basis
at a 30% annual rate for computer equipment, furniture and fixtures and automobiles.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the production of crude oil and natural gas is recognized when title passes to the customer and when
collection of the revenue is reasonably assured. For the Company’s Colombian operations, Gran Tierra Energy’s customers
take title when the crude oil is transferred to their pipeline. In Argentina, Gran Tierra Energy transports product from the
field to the customer’s refinery by truck. Revenue represents the Company’s share and is recorded net of royalty payments to
governments and other mineral interest owners.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price of business combinations over the fair value of net assets acquired and
is tested for impairment at least annually unless business events indicate an impairment test is required. The impairment
test requires allocating goodwill and all other assets and liabilities to assigned reporting units. The fair value of each
reporting unit is estimated and compared to the net book value of the reporting unit. If the estimated fair value of the
reporting unit is less than the net book value, including goodwill, then the goodwill is written down to the implied fair
value of the goodwill through a charge to expense. Because quoted market prices are not available for the Company’s
reporting units, the fair values of the reporting units are estimated based upon estimated future cash flows of the
reporting unit. The goodwill on the Company’s financial statements was a result of the acquisitions of Solana Resources
Limited (*Solana”) and Argosy Energy International L.P. ("Argosy “}, and relates entirely to the Colombia reporting segment.
The Company performed annual impairment tests of goodwill at December 31, 2008 and 2007. Based on these assessments,
no impairment of goodwill was identified.

Income taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized using the liability method, whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base, and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences and carryforwards are expected to be recovered or settled. Valuation allowances are provided if, after
considering available evidence, it is not more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized.

The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with FIN 48 (FASB Interpretation Number 48) Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes with respect to Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”") No. 109 Accounting for Income Taxes is a two-step process. The first step is recognition: The Company determines
whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any
related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax position
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has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the Company presumes that the position will be examined by

the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The second step is measurement:

A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit
to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater

than 50% of being realized upon settlement. The Company recognizes potential accrued interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense in the consolidated statement of operations. This is an
accounting policy election made by the Company that is a continuation of the Company’s historical policy and will continue
to be consistently applied in the future.

income (loss) per share

Basic income (loss) per share calculations are based on the net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders for the
year divided by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the period. The diluted
income (loss) per share calculation is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year, plus the effects of dilutive common share equivalents. This method requires that the dilutive effect of outstanding
options and warrants issued should be calculated using the treasury stock method. This method assumes that all common
share equivalents have been exercised at the beginning of the period (or at the time of issuance, if later), and that the funds
obtained thereby were used to purchase common shares of the Company at the average trading price of common shares
during the period. At December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, 100,000, 5,724,168 and 2,700,000 options to purchase common
shares and warrants to purchase nil, 33,917,536 and 35,156,915 common shares, respectively, were excluded from the diluted
loss per share calculation as the instruments were anti-dilutive,

Stock-based compensation

The Company follows the fair-value method of accounting for stock options granted to directors, officers and employees
pursuant to FASB SFAS No. 123 (Revised). Stock-based compensation expense is included as part of oil and natural gas
properties, operating and general and administrative expenses with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus.
Compensation expense for options granted is based on the estimated fair value at the time of grant and the expense is
recognized over the requisite service period of the option.

Accounting for oil and gas derivative instruments

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No.133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133").
SFAS 133 requires the accounting recognition of all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities at fair value. Under the
provisions of SFAS 133, the Company may or may not elect to designate a derivative instrument as a hedge against changes
in the fair value of an asset or a liability (a “fair value hedge”) or against exposure to variability in expected future cash flows
(a “cash flow hedge”). The accounting treatment for the changes in fair value of a derivative instrument is dependent upon
whether or not a derivative instrument is a cash flow hedge or a fair value hedge, and upon whether or not the derivative

is designated as a hedge as noted above. Changes in fair value of a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge
are recognized, to the extent the hedge is effective, in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized

in earnings. Changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument designated as a fair value hedge are recognized in the
consolidated statement of operations along with the changes in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.
Where hedge accounting is not elected or if a derivative instrument does not qualify as either a fair value hedge or a cash
flow hedge, changes in fair value are recognized in earnings as derivative financial instrument gain or loss. The Company’s
derivative instruments currently do not qualify as either a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge.

Warrants

Upon issuance, the Company records warrants issued to purchase its common stock at fair-value; subsequently, the
warrants are carried at amortized cost. The Company determines the fair value of warrants issued by using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The change of $8.6 million in the fair value of warrants issued in the 2006 Offering, arising from the
amendment to the terms of the warrants in connection with the settlement of the liability for liquidated damages, was
determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Warrants were assumed on the acquisition of Solana and their fair
value of $23.6 million was recorded as part of the consideration paid for the acquisition (Note 3).
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value under U.S. GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement
is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP")
SFAS 157-2 which delayed the effective date of SFAS 157 for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except

those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), until
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. These non-financial items
include assets and liabilities such as reporting units measured at fair value in a goodwill impairment test, asset retirement
obligations and non-financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. In October 2008, the FASB
also issued FSP SFAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active,”
which clarifies the application of SFAS 157 in an inactive market and illustrates how an entity would determine fair value
when the market for a financial asset is not active. Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS 157 for financial
assets and liabilities. The partial adoption of SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. See Note 11 for information and related
disclosures. Beginning January 1, 2009, the Company will adopt the provisions for non-financial assets and non-financial
liabilities that are not required or permitted to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis, which include those measured
at fair value in goodwill impairment testing, indefinite-tived intangible assets measured at fair value for impairment
assessment, non-financial long-lived assets measured at fair value for impairment assessment, asset retirement obligations
initially measured at fair value, and those initially measured at fair value in a business combination. The Company does not
expect the provisions of SFAS 157 related to these items to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”.

SFAS 159 permits an entity to elect fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement attribute for many financial assets
and liabilities. Entities electing the fair value option would be required to recognize changes in fair value in earnings. Entities
electing the fair value option are required to distinguish on the face of the consolidated balance sheet, the fair value of
assets and liabilities for which the fair value option has been elected and similar assets and liabilities measured using
another measurement attribute. The adoption of SFAS 159 on January 1, 2008 did not impact the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (R), “Business Combinations”, and SFAS No. 160, “Non-controlling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements”. SFAS 141 (R) requires an acquirer to measure the identifiable assets acquired,
the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at their fair values on the acquisition date, with
goodwill being the excess value over the net identifiable assets acquired. SFAS 160 clarifies that a non-controlling interest
in a subsidiary should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements. The calculation of earnings per share
will continue to be based on income amounts attributable to the parent. SFAS 141 (R) and SFAS 160 are effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Early adoption is prohibited and the provisions
are applied prospectively. The adoption of these statements is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements but these changes may affect potential future business combinations.

tn March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities™. SFAS 161
requires companies with derivative instruments to disclose information that should enable financial statement users to
understand how and why a company uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items
are accounted for under SFAS 133, and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect a company’s financial
position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and
interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets”. FSP 142-3 amends the
factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. FSP 142-3 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Early adoption is prohibited. The adoption of this
statement is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”. SFAS 162
identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles to be used in the preparation
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of financial statements of non-governmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States. It is effective 60 days following the SEC’s approval of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles”. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 07-05, “Determining Whether an Instrument (or
Embedded Feature) Is Indexed to an Entity’s Own Stock”. EITF 07-05 clarifies the determination of whether an instrument
(or an embedded feature) is indexed to an entity’s own stock, which would qualify as a scope exception under SFAS 133.
EITF 07-05 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Early adoption
for an existing instrument is not permitted. The adoption of this EITF is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2008, the SEC released Final Rule, Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting to revise the existing Regulation
S-K and Regulation S-X reporting requirements to align with current industry practices and technological advances. The
new disclosure requirements include provisions that permit the use of new technologies to determine proved reserves if
those technologies have been demonstrated empirically to lead to reliable conclusions about reserve volumes. In addition,
the new disclosure requirements require a company to (a) disclose its internal control over reserves estimation and report
the independence and qualification of its reserves preparer or auditor, (b) file reports when a third-party is relied upon to
prepare reserves estimates or conducts a reserve audit and (c) report oil and gas reserves using an average price based upon
the prior 12-month period rather than period-end prices. The provisions of this final ruling are effective for disclosures in
Gran Tierra Energy’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009. Early adoption is not permitted. Gran
Tierra Energy is currently assessing the impact that the adoption will have on the Company’s disclosures, operating results,
financial position and cash flows.

3. Business Combinations

Solana Resources Limited

On July 29, 2008, Gran Tierra Energy announced that it had entered into an agreement providing for the business
combination of Gran Tierra Energy and Solana. Under the terms of the agreement with Solana, each Solana sharehalder
would receive, for each Solana common share held, either: (1) 0.9527918 of a share of Gran Tierra Energy common stock; or
(2) 0.9527918 of a common share of a Canadian subsidiary of Gran Tierra Energy. The exchangeable shares: (a) would have
the same voting rights, dividend entitlements and other attributes as Gran Tierra Energy common stock; (b) would be
exchangeable, at each stockholder’s option, on a one-for-one basis into Gran Tierra Energy common stock; and (c) subject
to compliance with the listing requirements of the Toronto Stock Exchange, would be listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.
Exchangeable shares would automatically be exchanged for Gran Tierra Energy common stock five years from closing, and
in certain other events. The arrangement would also result in Solana optionholders and Solana warrantholders receiving
either Solana common shares pursuant to a cashless exercise of their options or warrants or cash payments, in both cases
based on the above exchange ratio. In addition, certain Solana options might be exchanged for options of Gran Tierra Energy,
and holders of Solana warrants might elect to continue to hold their warrants, which would be exercisable into shares of
common stock of Gran Tierra Energy pursuant to the terms of such warrants.

The transaction was completed November 14, 2008 pursuant to a plan of arrangement in accordance with the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta). Upon completion of the transaction, Solana became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Gran
Tierra Energy. On a diluted basis, upon the closing of the plan of arrangement, Solana security holders owned approximately
49% of the combined company and Gran Tierra Energy security holders owned approximately 51% of the combined company.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method, with Gran Tierra Energy being the acquirer, whereby the
Solana assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their fair values at the acquisition date of November 14, 2008
and the results of Solana have been consolidated with those of Gran Tierra Energy from that date. The fair value of Gran
Tierra Energy’s shares was determined as the weighted average closing price of the common shares of Gran Tierra Energy for
the five-day period around the announcement date of July 29, 2008, being two days prior to and after the acquisition was
agreed to and announced, and the announcement date. The fair value of each exchangeable share issued is equal to the fair
value of a common share of Gran Tierra Energy.
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Under the terms of the acquisition, Gran Tierra Energy acquired all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Solana
in exchange for 120,620,967 shares, comprised of 51,516,332 Gran Tierra Energy common shares and 69,104,635 exchangeable
shares of Gran Tierra Exchangeco Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Gran Tierra Energy. In accordance with the provisions of
the agreement, 490,001 Solana stock options were exchanged for 466,869 Gran Tierra Energy stock options. Also, 7,500,000
Solana warrants were assumed on the date of the acquisition and are exchangeabie for 7,145,938 Gran Tierra Energy common
shares. The fair value of the options and warrants was included as part of the consideration for this acquisition and was
determined based on market price over a five-day period before and after the announcement date using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Warrants

Exercise price (Canadian dollars per warrant) $2.00
Risk-free interest rate 2.28%
Expected life 1.7 years
Volatility 75%
Expected annual dividend per share Nil
Fair value per warrant $3.39

Stock Options

Exercise price {(Canadian dollars per stock option) $2.36-54.33
Risk-free interest rate 2.28%
Expected life 1.3-4.8 years
Volatility 71%—75%
Expected annual dividend per share Nil
Weighted average fair value per option $2.75

Based on the conditions existing at the completion date, November 14, 2008, the fair value of the Solana warrants, as
determined by Gran Tierra Energy, exceeded the fair value of the Solana warrants, as determined by Solana, by approximately
$0.6 million, and was recorded by Gran Tierra Energy immediately as compensation expense and reported as part of general
and administrative expenses.

On November 14, 2008 and prior to the November 15, 2008 deadline, as contractually agreed, Gran Tierra Energy issued
2 million common shares to acquire the participating interest in Solana’s properties that, under the Colombian Participation
Agreement entered into in 2006 with Crosby Capital LLC (“Crosby”) as part of the acquisition of Argosy, would otherwise
accrue to the former owners of Argosy. The ascribed value of common shares issued has been included in the purchase
consideration for the acquisition as the completion of the acquisition was dependent on the successful acquisition of this
participating interest. The shares were issued in a private placement, subject to a registration rights agreement, and were
registered with the SEC in February 2009.
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The following table shows the allocation of the purchase price based on the fair values of the assets and liabilities
acquired:

{thousands of U.S. dollars)

i Price:

Common Shares/Exchangeable Shares issued net of share issue costs 5

Warrants

Stock options
f

Two million common shares issued under Colomblan Participation Agreement 10.470
Transaction costs 4,938
5 671,798

Oil and Gas Properties

Proved S 320,773
Unproved 360,493
Other assets 741
Other long-term assets 1.329
Goodwill™ 83,577
Net working capital (including cash acquired) 99,727
Asset retirement obligations (3,148)
Deferred income taxes (191,694)

S 671,798

(1} Goodwillis not deductible for tax purposes and is subject to annual impairment test.

The unaudited pro forma results for the years ended December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 are shown below, as If the
acquisition had occurred on january 1, 2008 and January 1, 2007, respectively. Pro forma results are not indicative of actual
results or future performance.

{unaudited, thousands of U.S. dollars except per share amounts)

Oil and natural gas sales and interest
Net income {{oss)
Net income (loss) per share~—basic

Net income {loss) per share—diluted

Argosy Energy International

Gran Tierra Energy entered into a Securities Purchase Agreernent dated May 25, 2006 with Crosby to acquire all of the limited
partnership interests of Argosy and all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Argosy Energy Corp. On june 20, 2006,
Gran Tierra Energy closed the Argosy acquisition and paid consideration to Crosby consisting of $37.5 million cash, 870,647
shares of the Company’s common stock and overriding and net profit interests in certain of Argosy's assets valued at

St million. The value of the overriding and net profit interests was based on the present value of expected future cash flows.
All of Argosy’s assets are in Colombia.
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The acguisition has been accounted for using the purchase method, and the results of Argosy have been consolidated
with Gran Tierra Energy from June 20, 2006. The following table shows the allocation of the purchase price based on the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired:

{thousands of U.S. dollars)

Purchase Price:

Cash paid (net of cash acquired) $ 36,414
Common shares issued 1,306
Transaction costs 498

S 38,218

Purchase Price Allocated:

Oil and natural gas assets S 32,553
Goodwili 15,005
Accounts receivable 5,362
Inventories® 567
Long-term investments 7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (6,085)
Long-term liabilities (50)
Deferred tax liabilities (9,141)

S 38,218

(1) Goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes and is subject to an annual impairment test.
(2) Inventory was comprised of $0.5 million supplies and $o.1 million of oil inventory.

The unaudited pro forma results for the period ended December 31, 2006 are shown below, as if the acquisition had occurred
on January 1, 2006. Pro forma results are not indicative of actual results or future performance.

Year ended
(unaudited, thousands of U.S. dollars except per share amounts) B December 31, 2006
Oil and natural gas sales and interest S 18,775
Net income S 294
Net income per common share—basic S 0.01
Net income per common share—diluted S 0.01
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4. Segment and Geographic Reporting
The Company’s reportable operating segments are Colombia and Argentina based on a geographic organization. The
Company is primarily engaged in the exploration and production of off and natural gas. Peru is not a reportable segment
because the level of activity on these land holdings is insignificant at this time and is included as part of the Corporate
segment. The accounting policies of the reportable operating segments are the same as those described in the summary
of significant accounting policies. The Company evaluates performance based on profit or foss from oil and natural gas
operations before price risk management and income taxes.

The Solana assets were purchased November 14, 2008 (Note 3), therefore the Colombia and Corporate segrnents contain
the results of its operations from that date forward.

The foliowing tables present information on the Company’s reportable geographic segments:

(thousands of U.S. dollars except per unit of production amounts)

Revenues

Interest income

Depreciation, depletion & accretion

Depreciation, depletion & accretion-—per unit of production

Segment incorme {loss) before income tax

Segment capital expenditures

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Colombia Argentina Corporate Total

“Revenues S 23749 S 8104 S ~ s 31853
Interest income 222 15 188 425
Depreciation, depletion & accretion 6.850 2,477 88 9,415
Depreciation, depletion & accretion-—per unit of production 20.56 11.84 - 17.36
Segment income (loss) before income tax 11,484 (2,475) {(17,181) (8,172)
Segment capital expenditures S 14,215 S 1.679 S 731 S 16,625
Year Fnded December 31, 2006

Colombia Argentina Corporate Total

Revenues S 112 S 5,109 S - S 11,721
Interest income - 352 352
Depreciation, depletion & accretion 2.494 1.551 43 4,088
Depreciation, depletion & accretion—per unit of production 19.30 11.95 - 15.79
Segment income (loss) before income tax 1.486 (411} (6,221) (5,146}

wy

Segment capital expenditures 34,053 S 14,084

[

256 S 48,393

{thousands of U.S. dollars)

Property, plant & equipment
Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

As at December 31, 2007

Colombia Argentina Corporate Total
Property, plant & equipment S 43,639 S 19,248 S 1,031 S 63918
Goodwill 15.005 - - 15.005
Other assets 15,949 6,622 11,303 33,874
Total assets S 74.593 S 25,870 S 12,334 S 112,797
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The Company’s revenues are derived principally from uncollateralized sales to customers in the oif and natural gas industry.
The concentration of credit risk in a single industry affects the Company’s overall exposure to credit risk because customers
may be similarly affected by changes in economic and other conditions. In 2008, 89% of the Company's revenue was from

one significant customer for its Colombian crude oil, Ecopetrol S.A. (*Ecopetrol”}, a Colombian government agency. In
Argentina, 9% of the Company's revenue was from one significant customer, Refineria def Norte S.A

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Accumulated Net Book
{thousands of LU.S. dollars) Cost DD&A Value

Oif and natural gas properties

Proved S 57.832 S {13.540) S 44,292

\

Unproved 18,910 18,910
76,742 (13,540) 63,202
Furniture and fixtures and @, .
leasehold improvements %@g{' : 815 (560) 255
; . . , . ;
Computer equipment V pﬁﬁs‘ 719 {299) 420
o
Automobiles 0 72 (31) 41
Total capital assets S 78.348 S (14,4300 S 63,918

The Company has capitalized $1.9 million (2007-$1.7 million) of generat and administrative expenses directly related
to the Colombian full cost center, including $0.4 million (2007—50.1 million) of stock-based compensation expense,
and $0.8 million (2007—S0.2 million) of general and administrative expenses in the Argentina full cost center, including
So.amillion (2007501 million) of stock-based compensation.

The unproved oil and natural gas properties consist of exploration lands held in Colombia, Argentina and Peru.
The Company has $375.9 million (2007-$15.1 million) in unproved assets in Colombia, S4.7 million (2007—53.1 million)
of unproved assets in Argentina and $3.6 million (2007—5%0.7 million) of unproved assets in Peru. These properties are
being held for their exploration value and are not being depleted pending determination of existence of estimated proved
reserves. Gran Tierra Energy will continue to assess and allocate the unproved properties over the next several years as
proved reserves are established and as exploration dictates whether or not future areas will be developed.

The following is a summary of Gran Tierra Energy’s oil and natural gas properties not subject to depletion:

Costs Incurred in

{theusands of U.S. dollars) 2007 Total
Acquisition costs—Argenting S S 2,971 S 2,971
Acquisition costs—Colombia 3.550 365,946
Exploration costs—Argentina - 1,147
Exploration costs—Colombia 808 4,203
Exploration costs—Peru 656 3.603
Development costs—Argentina 575
Developrment costs—Colombia 5,750
Total oil and natural gas properties not subject to depletion S 1464 S S 384195

6. Share Capital

The Company’s authorized share capital consists of 325,000,002 shares of capital stock, of which 300 million are designated as
common stock, par value $0.001 per share, 25 million are designated as preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share {collectively,
“common stock”), and two shares designated as special voting stock, par value $0.001 per share. Outstanding share capital

consists 0f 190,248,384 common voting shares of the Company, 37.254,143 exchangeable shares of Gran Tierra Exchangeco Inc.,
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and 10,984,126 exchangeable shares of Goldstrike Exchange Co. The exchangeable shares of Gran Tierra Exchangeco Inc., were
issued upon acquisition of Solana (Note 3). Each exchangeable share is exchangeable only into one common voting share of
the Company. The holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share on all matters submitted to a stockholder
vote and are entitled to share in all dividends that the board of directors, in its discretion, declares from legally available
funds. The holders of common stock have no pre-emptive rights, no conversion rights, and there are no redemption provisions
applicable to the common stock. Holders of exchangeable shares have substantially the same rights as holders of common
voting shares.

During the second quarter of 2007, investors holding 948,853 units, comprising 948,853 common shares and warrants
to purchase 474,427 common shares, exercised their right to have the Company return to them the purchase price for the
securities held in escrow. The funds of $1.3 million held in escrow by the Bank of America were refunded to the investors to
complete this transaction during June, 2007, and the units were cancelled.

Warrants

At December 31, 2008, the Company had 6,732,016 warrants outstanding to purchase 3,366,008 common shares for $1.25 per
share, 19,964,686 warrants outstanding to purchase 9,982,343 common shares for $1.05 per share and 7,145,938 warrants
assumed upon the acquisition of Solana (Note 3) to purchase 7,145,938 common shares for CDNS2.10 per share.

In connection with the settlement of liquidated damages relating to a delay in registration of units issued in june 2006,
as described in the “Registration Rights Payments” section below, the Company amended the terms of the warrants issued
to stockholders in june 2006 by adjusting the exercise price from $1.75 to $1.05 and extending the term of the warrants by
one year to June 2012.

Registration Rights Payments

The shares and warrants issued in 2005 and 2006 have registration rights associated with their issuance pursuant to which
the Company agreed to register for resale the shares and warrants. In the event that the registration statements were not
declared effective by the SEC by specified dates, the Company was required to pay liquidated damages to the purchasers of
the shares and warrants.

The 15,047,606 units issued in the fourth quarter of 2005 and first quarter of 2006 had liquidated damages payable in
the amount of 1% of the purchase price for each unit per month, payable each month the registration statement was not
declared effective beyond the mandatory effective date (July 10, 2006). The total amount recorded at December 31, 2006, for
these liquidated damages was $0.3 million. There are no further liabilities associated with these shares. As of February 14,
2007, the first registration statement was declared effective by the SEC.

In June 2006, the Company sold an aggregate of 50 million units of its securities at a price of $1.50 per unitin a private
offering for gross proceeds of $75 million, pursuant to three separate Securities Purchase Agreements, dated June 20, 2006,
and one Securities Purchase Agreement, dated June 30, 2006 (collectively, the “2006 Offering”). Each unit comprised one
share of Gran Tierra Energy’s common stock and one warrant to purchase one-half of a share of Gran Tierra Energy’s common
stock at an exercise price of $1.75 for a period of five years, resulting in the issuance of 50 million shares of Gran Tierra
Energy’s common stock. In connection with the issuance of these securities, Gran Tierra Energy entered into four separate
Registration Rights Agreements with the investors pursuant to which Gran Tierra Energy agreed to register for resale the
shares and warrants {and shares issuable pursuant to the warrants) issued to the investors in the offering by November 17,
2006. The second registration statement was declared effective by the SEC on May 14, 2007. Gran Tierra Energy had accrued
$8.6 million in liquidated damages as of that date.

On June 27, 2007, under the terms of the Registration Rights Agreements, the Company obtained a sufficient number
of consents from the signatories to the agreements waiving Gran Tierra Energy’s obligation to pay in cash the accrued
liquidated damages. The Company agreed to amend the terms of the warrants issued in the 2006 Offering by reducing
the exercise price of the warrants to $1.05 and extending the life of the warrants by one year, in lieu of a cash payment for
liquidated damages. The revised fair value of the warrants was determined using a Black-Scholes warrant pricing model
based on a 25% volatility rate, which reflects a typical volatility rate used to value this type of financial instrument.

The $8.6 million of liquidated damages has been recorded as an expense in the consolidated statement of operations in
the amounts of $7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, and $1.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2006, with a
corresponding liability recorded on the consolidated balance sheet. The revision in the fair value of the warrants resulting
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from the amendment to the terms of the warrants amounted to $8.6 million {equivalent to the amount of the liquidated
damages) and has been reflected on the consolidated balance sheet as an increase to the warrant value included in
shareholders’ equity and a settlement of the liability for liquidated damages.

Stock options

As at December 31, 2008, the Company has a 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, formed through the approval by shareholders of the
amendment and restatement of the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, under which the Company’s board of directors is authorized
to issue options or other rights to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock. On November 14, 2008, the shareholders
of Gran Tierra Energy approved an amendment to the Company’s 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, which increases the number of
shares of Common Stock available for issuance thereunder from 9,000,000 shares to 18,000,000 shares.

The Company has granted options to purchase comimon shares to certain directors, officers, employees and consultants.
Each option permits the holder to purchase one common share at the stated exercise price. The options vest over three years
and have a term of ten years, or the grantee's end of service to the Company, whichever occurs first. At the time of grant, the
exercise price equals the market price. The following options have been granted:

Weighted Average

Number of Exercise Price

Outstanding Options $/Option

Outstanding, December 31, 2007 5,724,168 S 1.52
Granted in 2008 5,690,000 2.63
Issued in a business acquisition (Note 3) 466,869 2.75
Exercised in 2008 (209,164) (0.86)
Forfeited in 2008 (265,003) 1.78
Outstanding, December 31, 2008 11,406,870 S 2.13

The weighted average grant date fair value for options granted in 2008 was $1.55 (2007—5$1.10; 2006—5$0.84). The intrinsic
value of options exercised in 2008 was $0.8 million (2007 and 2006—nil).
The table below summarizes stock options outstanding at December 31, 2008:
Weighted Average

Number of Exercise Price Weighted Average
Range of Lxercise Prices (S/option) Outstanding Options $/Option Expiry Years
$0.80 1,117,502 S 0.80 6.9
S1.15 to $1.29 1,779,999 S 1.26 8.0
$1.72t0 $1.92 494,572 S 1.77 7.8
$2.04 10 52.78 7,524,239 S 2.40 9.5
$3.50 to $7.75 490,558 S 4.38 7.4
Total 11,406,870 S 2.13 8.8

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding at December 31, 2008 is $8.9 million (2007—56.3 million) based on
the Company’s closing stock price of $2.80 for that date. At December 31, 2008, there was $7.9 million (2007—52.9 million)
of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock options which is expected to be recognized over the next
three years.
The table below summarizes exercisable stock options at December 31, 2008:
Weighted Average

Number of Exercise Price Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Prices {S/option) Exercisable Options $/Option Expiry Years
0.50 10 1.00 1,117,502 S 0.8 6.7
1.01t01.30 928,333 S 1.26 7.9
1.3110 2.00 237,903 S 1.82 6.6
2,01103.00 839,223 S 2.19 7.4
3.011010.00 190,558 S 3.54 4.4
Total 3,313,519 S 1.51 7.1
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The weighted average grant dare fair value for options vested in 2008 was 117 (2007--50.49). The aggregate intrinsic value of
options exercisable at December 31, 2008 is $4.8 million (2007533 million) based on the Company’s closing stock price of
$2.80 for that date.

in 2008, the stock-based compensation expense Is $3.1 million (20075101

$2.3 million (2007-5$0.7 mitlion; 2006-50.3 million) has been recorded in general and administrative expense and
$0.2 million (2007501 million) has been recorded in operating expense in the consolidated statement of operations.
in 2008, $0.6 million (2007—%0.2 million) was capitalized as part of exploration and development costs.
The fair value of each stock option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing mode

based on assumptions noted in the following table. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercises, expected
term and employee departure behavior used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatilities used in the fair
value estimate are based on historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual
term of the stock options is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve |

)

ffect at the time of grant.

2007 2006
Dividend yield ($ per share) S nit S nil
volatility (%) ' 94% 10 103% 105‘”};{
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.5% 10 5.06% 510%
Expected term (years) 3 years 3 years
Estimated forfeiture percentage (% per year) 10% 10%

ighted average shares outstanding

ed-average number of common and exchangeable shares outstanding
O i=4 (=]

Shares issuable pursuant to warrants

Shares issuable pursuant to stock options

Shares to be purchased from proceeds of stock options and warrants

We

shted-average number of diluted common and exchang

eable shares outstanding

7. Asset Retirement Obligation

The December 31, 2008 asset retirement obligation is comprised of a Colombian obligation in the amount of $3.5 million
(2007~%0.4 million) and an Argentine obligation in the amount of $0.8 milion (2007—50.4 million). Changes in the carrying
amounts of the asset retirement obligations associated with the Company’s oil and natural gas properties are as follows:

As at December 31,

(thousands of U.S. doliars} 2007

Balance, beginning of year

w
W
Nl

Liabifity assumed in a busi

ess combination (Note 3}
Settlements

Liability incurred

Foreign exchange

Accretion

Balance, end of year
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8. Income Taxes

The income tax expense reported differs from the amount computed by applying the Canadian statutory rate to income

{loss) before income taxes for the foliowing reasons:

(thousands of U.5. dollars)

Income {Joss

neeme taxes

Income tax expe (benefit) expected

current period tax losses not recognized
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Depreciation on inflationary adjustments

impact of tax rate changes on deferred tax balances
Impact of foreign taxes

Enhanced tax depreciation incentive

Stock-based compensation 260
Non-deductible items

Previously unrecognize

Partnership income pick-up in the U.S.

Utilization of foreign tax credits

Total income tax expense S 673

{thousands of U.S. dollars)

Deferred tax as

Tax benefit of loss carryforwards S

iovalue inexcess of tax basis 75

ax credits and other accruals
Capital losses
Deferred tax assets before valuation allowance
Valuation allowance
S

Deferred tax assets—current
Deferred tax assets—long-term
Deferred tax labilities
Current-—book value in excess of tax basis S
Long-term—book value in excess of tax basis
Book value in excess of tax basis S
Net deferred tax liabilities S (8,284)

The Company was required to calculate a deferred remittance tax in Colombia based on 7% of profits, which are not reinvested
in the business on the presumption that such profits would be transferred to the foreign owners up to December 31, 2006,
As of January 1, 2007, the Colombian government rescinded this law, therefore, no further remittance tax liabilities will be
accrued. The historical balance which was included on the Company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2008, as part
of the deferred income taxes, was S1.1 million (December 31, 2007513 million).

The Company has accrued no amounts as of December 31, 2008, for the potential payment of interest and penalties.
For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company has not recognized any amounts in respect of potential interest and

penalties assoclated with uncertain tax positions. The Company or one of its subsidiaries files income tax returns in the



U.S. federal jurisdiction, various state jurisdictions and other foreign jurisdictions. The Company is subject to income tax
examinations for the calendar tax years ending 2005 through 2007 in all jurisdictions.

As at December 31, 2008, the Company has deferred tax assets relating to net operating loss carryforwards of $17.0 million
(2007~%15.8 million) and capital losses of $1.4 million {2007—%3.0 million) before valuation allowances. Of these losses,
$17.0 miltion {2007~59.4 million) are losses generated by the foreign subsidiaries of the Company. Of the total losses,

$1.4 million (2007—54.0 million) will begin to expire by 2011 and $17.0 million of net operating losses (2007—51.9 million)

will begin to expire thereafter.

9. Accrued Liabilities and Accounts Payable
The accounts payable and accrued liabilities are comprised of the following:

As at Decemnber 31

{thousands of U.S. dollars) Colombia  Argentina  Corporate

Capital $ 7,985 S 223 S 51 5 8.2

Payroll 513 212 476 1,201
Audit, legal, consultants 196 105 1,385 1,686
General and administrative 299 73 319 691
Operating 4,898 731 - 5,629
Total S 13,891 S 1,344 5 Z,Zfﬁ.’l. m$ 17,466

10, Commitments and Contingencies

Gran Tierra Energy holds three categories of operating leases: office, vehicle and housing. The Company pays monthly
amounts of $141,988 for office leases, $15,338 for vehicle leases, $9,400 for a compressor and $5,567 for certain employee
accommodation leases in Argentina and Colombia.

Future lease payments as at December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Contractual Obligations Payments Due in Period
(thousands of U.S. dollars) Year tnded Decembe
Less than Mare than
Total TYeal 110 3 years
Operating leases 7 7 S 5126 S 1754 S 2,720 S
Drifling and completion services 1,104 1,104 - -
fotal S 6.230 S 2.858 S 2,720 S 609 S 43

Total rent expense for 2008 was $0.9 million 2007--50.3 million: 2006—50.2 million).

Guar
Corporate indemnities have been provided by the Company to directors and officers for various items including, but not
limited to, all costs to settle suits or actions due te their association with the Company and its subsidiaries and/or affiliates,
subject to certain restrictions. The Company has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to mitigate the cost of
any potential future suits or actions. Each indemnity, subject to certain exceptions, applies for as fong as the indemnified
person is a director or officer of one of the Company’s subsidiaries and/or affiliates. The maximum amount of any potential
future payment cannot be reasonably estimated.

The Company may provide indemnifications in the normal course of business that are often standard contractual terms
to counterparties in certain transactions such as purchase and sale agreements. The terms of these indemnifications
will vary based upon the contract, the nature of which prevents the Company from making a reasonable estimate of the
maximum ootential amounts that may be required to be paid. Management believes the resolution of these matters would
not have a material adverse impact on the Company’s fiquidity, consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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Gran Tierra Energy has contracted with a third-party to provide drilling and completion services for our Colombian
operations. The contract ends in February 2009 and has a remaining commitment of Sty million.

Contingencies

\

Ecopetrol and Gran Tierra Energy Colombia Ltd., (“Gran Tierra Colombia™), the contracting parties of the Guayuyaco
Assaciation Contract, are engaged in a dispute regarding the interpretation of the procedure for aliocation of oil produced
and sold during the long-term test of the Guayuyaco-1 and Guayuyaco-2 wells. There is a material difference in the
interpretation of the procedure established in Clause 3.5 of Attachment-B of the Guayuyaco Association Contract. Ecopetrol
interprets the contract to provide that the extended test production up to a value equal 1o 30% of the direct exploration
costs of the wells is for Ecopetrol’s account only and serves as reimbursement of its 30% back-in to the Guayuyaco discovery.
Gran Tierra Colombia’s contention is that this amount is merely the recovery of 30% of the direct exploration costs of the
wells and not exclusively for the benefit of Ecopetrol. There has been no agreement between the parties, and Ecopetrol has
filed a lawsuit in the Contravention Administrative Court in the District of Cauca regarding this matter. Gran Tierra Colombia
filed a response on April 29, 2008 in which it refuted all of Ecopetrol's claims and requested a change of venue to the

courts in Bogota. At this time, no amount has been accrued in the financial statements as the Company does not consider
it probable that a loss will be incurred. Ecopetrol is claiming damages of approximately $4.7 million. To the Company’s
knowledge, there are no other legal proceedings against Gran Tierra Energy.

1. Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

The Company’s financial instruments recognized in the balance sheet consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and derivative financial instruments. The estimated fair values of the
financial instruments have been determined based on the Company's assessment of available market information and
appropriate valuation methodologies; however, these estimates may not necessarily be indicative of the amounts that could
be realized or settled in a market transaction. The fair values of financial instruments approximate their book amounts due
to the short-term maturity of these instruments. Most of the Company’s accounts receivable relate to oil and natural gas
sales and are exposed to typical industry credit risks. The Company manages this credit risk by entering into sales contracts
with only credit worthy entities and reviewing its exposure to individual entities on a regular basis. The book value of the
accounts receivable reflects management’s assessment of the associated credit risks.

The Company’s revenues are derjved principally from uncollateralized sales to customers in the oil and natural gas industry.
The concentration of credit risk in a single industry affects the Company’s overall exposure to credit risk because customers may
be similarly affected by changes in economic and other conditions. In 2008, the Company has one significant customer for its
Colombian crude oil, Ecopetrol. In Argentina, the Company has one significant customer, Refineria del Norte S.A.

The Company recognizes the fair value of its derivative instruments as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. None of
the Company’s derivative instruments currently qualify as fair value hedges or cash flow hedges and, accordingly, changes in
fair value of the derivative instruments are recognized as Income or expense in the consolidated statement of operations and
retained earnings (accumulated deficit) with a corresponding adjustment to the fair value of derivative instruments recorded
on the balance sheet. Under the terms of the Credit Facility with Standard Bank (Note 12), the Company was required to
enter into a derivative instrument for the purpose of obtaining protection against fluctuations in the price of oil In respect
of at least 50% of the june 30, 2006 Independent Reserve Evaluation Report projected aggregate net share of Colombian
production after royalties for the three-year term of the Facility. In accordance with the terms of the Facility, the Company
entered into a costless collar derivative instrument for crude oil based on West Texas Intermediate (*WTI"} price, with a floor
of $48.00 and a ceiling of $80.00, for a three-year period ending February 2010, for 400 barrels per day from March 2007 to
December 2007, 300 barrels per day from january 2008 to December 2008, and 200 barrels per day from January 2009 to
February 2010,

ear Ended December 31,

(thousands of U.S. dollars)

2007
Realized financial derivative loss § 7 391
Unrealized financial derivative {gain) loss 2,649
Financial derivative (gain) loss $ 3.040
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Assets {Liabilities)

nancial deriv

Current port

Ltong-term p on of unreatized financial d

derivative

Unrealized fina

Certain of Gran Tierra Energy’s assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the accompanying balance sheets,

following tables provide fair value measurement information for such assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2008 and

December 31, 2007

ying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable (includ
urrent taxes payable md ccrued expenses) included in the accompanying consolidated ba
erOYHFaTLC fair value at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007. These assets and liabilities are not ¢

ng taxes receivable) and accounts p
sheet’si

i=h

following ta

Financial Assers (Liabilities)
{thousands of U.5. dollars)

oil collar e s 0 ‘ o
é L i L i R mﬁm/ﬁk\ﬁw

As at December 31

Fair Value Measturements "\‘,1511'1@_‘?,1

Markets — Obser Jnobser

Financial Assets {Liabilities)
{thousands of )

value

rying Amount Total Fa

S -209) S (2,649) S -

ure fair value

SFEAS 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation technigues used to me

Ry consist of

As presemem in the table above, this hierarchy consists of three broad levels. Level 1 inputs on the hierarc

Level 2 and 3

ts and labil and have the highest prio

t
L

i prices in active markets for identical ass

unadiusted quote

inputs have lower priorities. The Compary uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure
ties. When available, Gran Tierra Energy measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because

erally ;)ro\/ide the most reliable evidence of fair value.

the fair values of assets and liabili

they gen

The Company uses Level 2 method to measure the fair value of its crude oil collars. The fair values of the crude

oil are estimated using internal discounted cash flow calculations based upon forward commodity price curves and
hose brokers or

quotes obt ained from cou nterparties to the agresments taki ng into account the credit worthi

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the falr values of the assets and liabliities in the

table above.

ve any assets or liabilities whose fair value is measured using this method.

2 Fair Value Measuremer

lcutations ba

Crude oif collars — The fair values of the crude oil are estimated using internal discounted cash flow ¢ upon

ined from brokers for contracts with similar terms or quotes obtained from

forward commaodi ity p price curves ul\d quotes obt
counterpaities to the agreements.

Fair Value Measurements

cial labilities whose fair value is measured using this method.

The Company does not have any financial assets or fina
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12. Credit Facilities
Effective February 28, 2007, the Company entered into a credit facility with Standard Bank Plc. The facility has a three-year
term which may be extended by agreement between the parties. The borrowing base is the present value of our petroleum
reserves of a subsidiary—Gran Tierra Colombia Ltd,, up to maximum of $50 million. The initial borrowing base is 57 million
he borrowing base will be re-determined semi-annually based on reserve evaluation reports. As a result of Standard
Bank Plc’s review of Gran Tierra Energy's Mid-Year 2007 maeperxdem Reserve Audit, the Company has received preliminary
approval to increase our borrowing base to $20 million; however, this has not been pursued this further as the additional
credit is not required at this time. The facility includes a letter of credit sub-limit of up to $5 million. Amounts drawn down
uﬂder the facility bear interest at the Eurodollar rate plus 4%. A stand-by fee of 1% per annum is charged on the undrawn
amount of the borrowing base. The facility is secured primarily by the assets of Gran Tierra Colombia. Under the terms of
the facility, the Company is required to maintain compliance with specified financial and operating covenants. Gran Tierra
Energy was required to enter into a derivative instrument for the purpose of obtaining protection against fluctuations
in the price of oil in respect of at least 50% of the September 30, 2006 Independent Reserve Evaluation Report projected
aggregate net share of Colombian production after royalties for the three-year term of the Facility. As of December 31, 2008,
no amounts have been drawn-down under this facility.

Following the acquisition of Solana, effective November 14, 2008, Gran Tierra Energy obtained access to an additional
credit facility with BNP Paribas. The facility has a maturity date of December 20, 2010. The borrowing base is currently
526 rillion, based on the current value of petroleum reserves of the subsidiary, Solana Petroleurn Exploration (Colombia)
Ltd., up to a maximum of $100 million. The facility includes a fetter of credit sublimit of up to 55 million. Amounts drawn
down under the facility bear interest at the Eurodollar rate plus a margin for each quarter dependent on production for
the previous quarter as follows: 3.125% for production less than 1500 barrels of oil per day; 2.875% for production between
1,500 and 3,000 barrels of oil per day; 2.625% for production between 3.000 and 5,000 barrels of oil per day; and 2.375% for
production over 5,000 barrels of oil per day. The facility Is secured primarily by the assets of Solana Petroleum Exploration
(Colombia) Ltd. Under the terms of the facility, we are required to maintain compliance with specified financials and
operating covenants. As of December 31, 2008, no amounts have been drawn-down under this facility.

Both Standard Bank Plc and BNP Paribas have provided consent letters with regard to our acquisition of Solana,
specifically providing that the acquisition would not trigger any change in control provisions under the respective facilities.
The letters of consent provided by the banks each contain a number of conditions which effectively limit the time period of
the consent to 150 days from the acquisition date of November 14, 2008. The Company is currently working with both banks

to determine the appropriate facility going forward,

13. Subsequent Events

In connection with the Solana acquisition, Gran Tierra Energy acquired additional office space of 4,441 square feet used by
Solana as its headquarters in Calgary. The lease payments under the lease are $18.975 per month and operating and other
expenses are approximately $4,000 per month. The lease expires on April 30, 2014. On February 1, 2009, the Solana subsidiary
entered into a sublease for that office space with a company, of which two of Gran Tierra Energy’s directors are shareholders
and directors. The term of the sublease runs from February 1, 2009 to August 31, 2011 and the sublease payment is $7,050 per
month plus approximately $4,000 for operating and other expenses. The terms of the sublease are consistent with current
market conditions in the Calgary real estate market.



Supplementary Data {Unaudited)
1} Oil and Gas Producing Activities

The following oil and gas information is provided in accordance with SFAS 69“Disclosures about Oil and Gas
Producing Activities.”

Rese

rve Quantity information

Gran Tierra Energy’s net proved reserves and changes in those reserves for operations are disclosed below. The net proved
reserves represent management’s best estimate of proved oil and natural gas reserves after royalties. Reserve estimates
for each property are prepared internally each year and 100% of the reserves have been assessed by independent qualified
reserves consultants, GLj Petroleum Consultants.

Estimates of crude oil and natural gas proved reserves are determined through analysis of geological and engineering
data, and demonstrate reasonable certainty that they are recoverable from known reservoirs under economic and operating
conditions that existed at year end. See “Critical Accounting Estimates” in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations for a description of Gran Tierra Energy's reserves estimation process.

Proved Reserves Net of Royalties®

Argentina Colombia Total
Crude oilis in Bbl and natural gas is in million cubic feet Oil Gas Oil Gas oil Gas

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves,
December 31, 2005 582,692 24 - - 582,692 24
Extensions and Discoveries -

Purchases of Reserves In Place 1,302,720 732 1.229.269 - 2,531,989 732
Production (127,712) (30) {134,269) (261,981) (30
Revisions of Previous Estimates 137,300 739 - - 137,300 739
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves,

December 31, 2006 1,895,000 1,465 1,095,000 - 2,990,000 1,465
Extensions and Discoveries - - 3,477,000 - 3,477,000

Purchases of Reserves in Place - - -

Production (207,912) 27y (333.157) - [541.069) (27)
Revisions of Previous Estimates 347,912 (1,438) 144,157 - 492,069 {1,438)

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves,
December 31, 2007 2,035,000

Extensions and Discoveries
Purchases of Reserves in Place
Production

Revisions of Previous Estimates

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves,
December 31, 2008

R

Proved developed reserves, December 31, 20067 1,413,000 1,465 ,034,00 - 2,447,000 1,465
Proved developed reserves, December 31, 20077

- 5,263,000 -

Proved developed reserves, December 31, 20087

(1) Proved developed oil and gas reserves are expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods.

(2) Proved oif and gas reserves are the estimated quantities of natural gas, crude oil, condensate and natural gas liquids that geological
and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty can be recovered in future years from known reservoirs under existing
economic and operating conditions. Reserves are considered “proved” if they can be produced economically, as demonstrated by either
actual production or conclusive formation testing.
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B. Capitalized Costs
(Thousands of U.S. dollars) proved Properties  Unproved Properties  Accumulated DD&A Capitalized Costs
Capitalized Costs, December 31, 2007 57,832 S 18,254 5 (13,540) 62,546

Argentina

Colombia

Capitalized Costs, December 31, 2008

d & Year Ended December 31, 2

C.Costs Incurred—Ppe

N

{Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Oil and Gas

Argentina Colombia Total
S 8.332 S - $ 8,332
Property Acquisition Costs

Proved S 8,440 S 18,345 S 26,785
Unproved 3,921 14,399 18,320
Exploration Casts - 5,777 5,777
Development Costs 1,034 60 1,094
Year ended December 31, 2006 S 21,727 S 38,581 S 60-‘30é
Property Acquisition Costs o
Proved S 5 S B
Unproved -
Exploration Costs 10,075 10,075

Development Costs 1,633 4,070

Property Acquisition Costs
Proved

Unproved

Exploration Costs

Development Costs
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(Thousands of U.S. dolars) Argentina Colombia

Net Sales S 5,109 S S 11,721
Production Costs (2,847}

Exploration Expense -
DD&A

Other expenses/(incom

ncome Tax Provision 132 (810}
Results 0 o - ) s 1,921
Net ¢ S 8,104 S 23,748 4
Production Costs (4,097 (10.424)
Exploration Expense
DD&A (2.477) (6.850) (9.327)
Other expenses/(income)
income Tax Provision 1,065 (1,354}
s of Operations S 36° 11,447

nded Decsmber 31, 2008

Net Sa

Produc
Exploration Expense
DD&A

Other expenses/{income)

income Tax Provision
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The following disclosure is based on estimates of net proved reserves and the period during which they are expected to
be produced. Future cash inflows are computed by applying year end prices to Gran Tierra Energy’s after royalty share

of estimated annual future production from proved oil and gas reserves. The calculated weighted average oif prices at

December 31, 2008 were $41.23 for Colombia and $36.17 for Argentina. The calculated weighted average ofl prices at December
31, 2007 were $71.28 for Colombia and $38.76 for Argentina, The calculated weighted average ol prices at December 31, 2006
were $48.66 for Colombia and $36.78 for Argentina. The calculated weighted average production costs at December 31. 2008
were $12.21 for Colombia and $13.05 for Argentina. The calculated weighted average production costs at December 31, 2007
were $12.30 for Colombia and $30.24 for Argentina. The calculated weighted average production costs at December 31, 2006
were $10.73 for Colombia and $21.93 for Argentina. Future development and production costs to be incurred in producing and
further developing the proved reserves are based on year end cost indicators. Future income taxes are computed by applying
year end statutory tax rates. These rates reflect allowable deductions and tax credits, and are applied to the estimated pre-
tax future net cash flows.

Discounted future net cash flows are calculated using 10% mid-year discount factors. The calculations assume the
continuation of existing economic, operating and contractual conditions. However, such arbitrary assumptions have not
proved to be the case in the past. Other assumptions could give rise to substantially different results.

The Company believes this information does not in any way reflect the current economic value of its oil and gas
producing properties or the present value of their estimated future cash flows as:

+ noeconomic value is attributed to probable and possible reserves;

- use of 3 10% discount rate is arbitrary; and

< prices change constantly from year end levels.

(Thousands of U.S. dollars) Argentina Colombia Total

Future Cash tnflows S 72,151 S 53,332 S 125,483
Future Production Costs (24,385) (14,958) {39,343}
Future Development Costs {9,102} (2,307) (11,409;
Future Site Restoration Costs (872) - (872}
Future Income Tax {12,849) (12,263) (25,112}
Future Net Cash Flows 24,943 23.804 48,747
10% Discount Factor (7.686) (6,193) {13.879)
; - 5 17,257 S 17,611 S 34,868
Future Cash inflows S 79,777 S 393,164 S 472,841
Future Production Costs {20.001) (54,760) (74,761}
Future Development Costs (8,658 (21,350} {30,008)
Future Site Restoration Costs (617} (2,568) {(3.185)
Future Income Tax (17,716} (98,998) {116,714}
Future Net Cash Flows . 32,785 215,488 248273
10% Discount Factor (8,435} (43,554) {51,989}

24,350 171,934 196,284

Future Cash inflows

Future Production Costs
Future Development Costs
Future Site Restoration Costs

Future Income Tax

Future Net Cash Flows

10% Discount Factor
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Changes in the Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows
The following are the principal sources of change in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows:
(Thousands of U.S. doltars) ' ' - 2007 2006

S 34868

Sates and Transfers of Oil and Gas Produced.

Net of Production Costs (21.428)

Net Changes in Prices and Production Costs Related to

Future Production 7.399 943
Extensions, Discoveries and improved Recovery, Less Related Costs 204,151
Development Costs Incurred during the Period 5,703 1,034

Revisions of Previous Quantity Estimates 34,880
Accretion of Discount 4,875
Purchases of Reserves in Place -
Sales of Reserves in Place
Net change in income Taxes (74,164) (2.029)
Other
End of Year S 196,284 S 34,868
2} Summarized Quarterly Financial Information
(Thousands
of U.S. dollars income (Loss) Basic Net in-
except per share Revenue and Before income Net Income come Netin
amounts) Other Income Expenses  Income Taxe Taxes (Loss) (Loss) Per Share  (Loss) P

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter®

First Quarter S 4,517 S 11,465 S {6.948) S (298) 1S (6,650) S (0.07) s (0.07)
Second Quartes 3,750 9,998 (6,248) (1,176} (5.072) {0.09) {0.05)
Third Quarter 8,039 7.458 581 (511) 1,092 0.01 3.01
Fourth Quarter 15,972 11,529 4,443 2,280 2.163 0.02 2

S 32278 S 40,450 S 8.172) S 295 S (8.467) S 0.09) S (0.09)

(1) The fourth quarter reflects the results of Solana subsequent to date of acquisition November 14, 2008

Geographic Information

Information regarding our geographic segments, inciuding information on revenues, assets, expenses, and income can be
found in Note 4 to the Financial Statements, Segment and Geographic Reporting. Long-lived assets are Property, Plant and

Equipment, which includes all oif and gas assets, furniture and fixtures, automobiles and computer equipment. No fong-

lived assets are held in our country of domicile, which is the United States of America. Corporate assets include assets held
by our corporate head office in Calgary, Alberta, Canada, and assets held in Peru.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Market for Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

our common stock was first cleared for quotation on the OTC bulletin board on November 11, 2005 and traded from that
time under the symbol “GTRE.OB.”, until April 8, 2008 when our common stock began trading on the NYSE Alternext (formerly
American Stock Exchange) under the symbol “GTE”. On February 19, 2008, our common stock was listed on the TSX and

is trading under the symbol “GTE”. On November 17, 2008, exchangeable shares in one of our subsidiaries, Gran Tierra
Exchangeco Inc., were listed on the TSX and are trading under the symbol “GTX".

As of February 23, 2009 there were approximately: 93 holders of record of shares of our common stock and 196,970,528
shares outstanding with $0.001 par value; and one share of Special A Voting Stock, $0.001 par value representing
approximately 18 holders of record of 10,984,126 exchangeable shares which may be exchanged on a 1-for-1 basis into shares
of our Common Stock; and one share of Special B Voting Stock, $0.001 par value, representing 16 holders of record of
31,357,199 shares of Gran Tierra Exchangeco Inc., which are exchangeable on a 1-for-1 basis into shares of our common stock.

On February 23, 2009, the last reported sales price of our shares on the NYSE Alternext was $2.17. For the periods indicated
from January 1, 2007 to April 8, 2008, the following table sets forth the high and low bid prices per share of our common
stock, which prices represent inter-dealer quotations without retail markup, markdown, or commission and may not
necessarily represent actual transactions. For the periods indicated from April 8, 2008 through the end of the fourth quarter
of 2008, the following table shows the high and low sale prices per share of our common stock as reported on the NYSE
Alternext (formerly American Stock Exchange).

High Low
Fourth Quarter, 2008 S 3.69 S 1.89
Third Quarter, 2008 S 7.93 S 3.17
Second Quarter, 2008 S 8.25 S 3.36
First Quarter, 2008 S 4.22 S 2.50
Fourth Quarter, 2007 S 2.69 S 1.39
Third Quarter, 2007 S 2.16 S 1.31
Second Quarter, 2007 $ 1.49 S 090
First Quarter, 2007 S 14 S 088

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid dividends on the shares of common stock and we intend to retain future earnings, if any, to
support the development of the business and therefore do not anticipate paying cash dividends for the foreseeable future.
Payment of future dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors after taking into account various
factors, including current financial condition, operating results and current and anticipated cash needs. Under the terms of
our credit facilities we are required to obtain the approval of one or both of the banks carrying our credit facilities for any
dividend payments made by us exceeding $2 million in any fiscal year for Standard Bank PLC and $1 million for BNP Paribas.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

On seven separate dates beginning on October 1, 2008 and ending on December 31, 2008, we sold an aggregate of 270,161
shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $316,369. These shares were issued to seven holders of
warrants to purchase shares of our common stock upon exercise of the warrants. The shares were issued to these holders
in reliance on Section 4(2) under the Securities Act, in that they were issued to the purchasers of the warrants, who had
represented that they were accredited investors as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act.
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Performance Graph

COMPARISON OF 37-MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN"
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s D) Wilshite Exploration & Production index - e - Russel Small Cap Co

#5100 invested on 11/14/05 in stock & 10/31/05 in index-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31,
Copyright © 2009 S&P. a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.
Copyright © 2009 Dow jones & Co. All rights reserved.

11/05 12/05 12/06 12/07
Gran Tierra Energy Inc 100.00 184.00 79.33 174.67
Dow Jones Wilshire MicroCap 100.00 104.39 119.93 109.71

D} Wilshire Exploration & Production 100.00 104.56 105.88 154.15

Russell small Cap Completeness 100.00 105.03 120.66 126.52

Gran Tierra Energy previously compared its stock price performance to the broad market index—Dow Jones Wilshire MicroCap
index. However, due to the increase in the market capitalization and size of Gran Tierra Energy, in large part due to the

acquisition of Solana, Gran Tierra Energy believes a more refevant broad market index for comparison purposes would be the
Russell Small Cap Completeness index. As a result, Gran Tierra Energy is providing both indices here, and in the future will no

longer report the Dow Jones Wilshire MicroCap index.

Glossary of Commaonly Used Terms

3D Seismic—Three dimensional seismic
2D Seismic—Two dimensional seismic
2P—Proved and probable reserves
BBO~Billions of barrels of oil
BOPD-Barrels of oil per day
BOE—Barrels of oif equivalent
EUR—Estimated ultimate recovery
km’—Square kilometers
km—Kilometers

MMBO-—Million barrels of oil

78




'Cha:rman and CEO Tuscany lntemanonal Drmmg lnc.

~ Verne Juhnson
',Presldent, KﬁstErin Resources Inc.
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Corporate Director

'} Scott Price

- President, Prospect International inc.
Executive Officers

.. Dana Coffield
Presi dent Chief Executwe Officer, Director

~Martin Eden
Chief Fmancaa] Off:cer

: shane O’Leaxy

- Chief Operating Officer

 Foreign Subsidiary Managers
Rafael Orunesu

4 Prxesident,"GranTierra‘ Energy Argentina

~ Edgar Dyes
President, Gran Tierra Energy Colombia

: ugal Conns‘el ~ ;
©“For United States matters
Cooley Godward Kronish LLP

Five Palo Alto Square

3000 Ef-Camino Real - :
Palo Alto, California 94306-2155, USA

For Canadian matters ;

Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP
855-2nd Street SW.

Suite 3500, Bankers Hall East Tower
-+ Calgary, Alberta T2P 4J8, Canada

' Transfer Agents

For Gran Tierra Energy Inc.
Computershare — USA
350 Indiana Street, Suite 800

-Golden, Colorado. 80401, USA

800.962.4284

For Gran Tierra Exchangeco inc.
Computershare—Canada

600, 530-8th Avenue SW,
Calgary, Alberta T2P 358, Canada
800.736.1755

Investor Relations

Equicom Group

Tom McMillan

Suite 325, 300 5th Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta T2P3C4, Canada
403.536.5903

Independent Accountants
Deloitte and Touche LLP

3000, 700 Second Street SW
Calgary, Alberta T2P 057, Canada

Annual Meeting and Report
The 2009 annual meeting of Shareholders
will be held on june 16, 2009 at 10:00 am MDT at:

Lougheed House
707-13 Avenue SW,
Calgary, Alberta T2R 0K8, Canada

Material Requests

GTE will supply a copy of the Form 10-K, including financial
statements and schedules, without charge, upon receiving
a written request for these materials. Please submit your
requests to Martin Eden by email at info@ygrantierra.com
or by mail to:

300, 611 10th Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta T2R 0B2, Canada

Gran Tierra Energy’s filings are also available on a Web site
maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission at
www.sec.gov and on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Design & Production by Equicom, a TMX.Group Company.
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